
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Urban Renewal Agency 
Board of Directors Agenda 

Kenneth L. Woods, Jr., Presiding 
Monday, November 4, 2024 

Immediately following the 7:00 pm City Council Meeting 
Dallas City Hall, 187 SE Court St.  Dallas, OR 97338 

ITEM RECOMMENDED 
ACTION 

1. ROLL CALL

2. Approve minutes of the September 16, 2024 Urban Renewal
Agency Board of Directors Meeting

MOTION 

3. 791 Main Street Project Update

4. Building Improvement Grant File No. 24-05 Gather Food
Park, 144 Washington Street

MOTION 

5. Building Improvement Grant File No. 24-06 Marlene Cox,
905 Main Street

MOTION 

6. ADJOURNMENT

Board of Directors 

Mayor 
Kenneth L Woods, Jr. 

Director 
Michael Schilling 

Director 
Nancy Adams 

Director 
Carlos Barrientos 

Director 
Larry Briggs 

Director 
Kirsten Collins 

Director 
Kim Fitzgerald 

Director 
Micah Jantz 

Director 
David Shein 

Director  
Debbie Virden 

CITY STAFF 

City Manager 
Brian Latta 

Asst. City Manager 
Emily Gagner 
City Attorney 
Lane Shetterly 

Fire & EMS Chief 
April Wallace 
Police Chief 

Tom Simpson 
Economic & 
Community 

Development 
Director 

Charlie Mitchell 
Public Works 

Director 
Gary Marks 

Library Director 
Mark Johnson 

Finance Director 
Cecilia Ward 

City Recorder 
Kim Herring 

All persons addressing the Agency will please use the table at the front of the Agency.  All 
testimony is electronically streamed and recorded via the City of Dallas YouTube Channel: 

https://www.dallasor.gov/community/page/dallasyoutube 

p.2

p.3

p.115

p.123

https://www.dallasor.gov/community/page/dallasyoutube


MEETING MINUTES 

DALLAS DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION 
URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Monday, September 16, 2024 
The Dallas Development Commission Urban Renewal Agency Board of Directors met on 1 
Monday, September 16, 2024 at 7:59 pm with Mayor Kenneth L. Woods, Jr. presiding. 2 

ROLL CALL 3 

Directors Present: Director Michael Schilling, Director Nancy Adams, Director Carlos Barrientos, 4 
Director Larry Briggs, Director Kirsten Collins, Director Kim Fitzgerald, Director David Shein and 5 
Director Debbie Virden 6 

Directors Excused: Director Micah Jantz 7 

Also present were: Mayor Kenneth L. Woods, Jr., City Manager Brian Latta, Assistant City 8 
Manager Emily Gagner, Fire and EMS Chief April Wallace, Deputy Police Chief Jerry Mott, 9 
City Attorney Lane Shetterly, Public Works Director Gary Marks and City Recorder Kim Her-10 
ring. 11 

APPROVAL OF August 19, 2024 MEETING MINUTES 12 

Director Adams made a motion to approve the minutes. Director Shein seconded the motion. The 13 
vote was taken and the motion passed with a vote of 8-0. 14 

Building Improvement Grant File No. 24-04 World Gym Functional Medicine and Well-15 
ness Center, 124 Court Street 16 

Mr. Latta presented the staff report. Director Schilling made a motion to approve the Building 17 
Improvement Grant File Number 24-04 for World Gym Functional Medicine and Wellness Cen-18 
ter at 124 Court Street in an amount up to $6,209, and authorize the city manager to prepare the 19 
grant agreement. Director Briggs seconded the motion. The vote was taken and the motion 20 
passed with a vote of 8-0. 21 

ADJOURNMENT: 8:08 pm 22 

Read and approved this _______ day of _________________________ 2024. 

_______________________________________         

Chair Kenneth L. Woods, Jr. 

________________________________________ 

Brian Latta, City Manager 

U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 2

 o
f 1

36



 

City’s Motto: Come Thrive with Us, We Invest in People and Business 
 

 
 
 

DALLAS DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION 
URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY  

STAFF REPORT 
 
MEETING DATE: November 4, 2024 
AGENDA ITEM NO. 3 
TOPIC: 791 Main Street project update 
PREPARED BY: Charlie Mitchell 
APPROVED BY: 
 

City Manager 

   
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
N/A – for information only.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
In June of 2023, the Agency officially purchased the property at 791 Main Street, the site of the 
former Bank of America. The Agency purchased this property for the purposes of facilitating 
future redevelopment and reuse of the site to add tax increment and new investment in the 
downtown and to add economic vibrancy to a key downtown location that has long been 
vacant and neglected. Earlier this year, the Agency engaged the services of a consultant team, 
Forum Placemaking, to assist staff and the community with public engagement, design and 
market feasibility. The Scope of Work provided by the consultant calls an approximately 12-
month project, which includes several meetings with the Agency and with the URDAC, as well 
as stakeholder interviews, a community survey and community meetings. 
 
The principal consultant, Brian Vanneman, will present to the Agency an update on the work 
performed to date and will discuss what may lay ahead for the project.   
 
SUMMARY TIMELINE: 
June – July 2024:   Building demolition 
June 2024 – June 2025:  Design/ market analysis phase 
2025-26:    Developer solicitation  
2026-28:    (Estimated) Construction could begin 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Excluding property purchase, approximately $195,000 has been spent on the project thus far. 
The budget for the design phase is $120,000, of which around $58,000 has been spent to date. 

U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 3

 o
f 1

36



79
1 

M
ai

n 
St

re
et

 | 
O

pe
n 

H
ou

se
 | 

Se
pt

em
be

r 4

Ba
se

d 
on

 th
e 

ou
tr

ea
ch

 c
on

du
ct

ed
 to

 d
at

e 
by

 th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t t

ea
m

, t
he

 fo
llo

w
in

g 
po

in
ts

 h
av

e 
em

er
ge

d 
as

 
po

te
nt

ia
l p

ar
ts

 o
f t

he
 D

al
la

s’
 v

is
io

n 
fo

r a
 fu

tu
re

 
bu

ild
in

g 
at

 7
91

 M
ai

n 
St

re
et

: 

•
A 

m
ul

ti-
st

or
y,

 m
ix

ed
-u

se
 b

ui
ld

in
g,

 w
ith

 re
st

au
ra

nt
 

or
 re

ta
il 

us
es

 o
n 

th
e 

gr
ou

nd
 fl

oo
r,

 a
nd

 lo
dg

in
g 

(h
ot

el
) o

r h
ou

si
ng

 a
bo

ve
.

•
A 

tim
el

es
s,

 h
ig

h-
qu

al
ity

, w
el

l-d
es

ig
ne

d 
bu

ild
in

g 
th

at
 is

 c
om

pa
tib

le
 w

ith
 th

e 
su

rr
ou

nd
in

g 
hi

st
or

ic
 

di
st

ric
t.

•
At

tr
ac

t m
or

e 
pe

op
le

 a
nd

 a
ct

iv
ity

 d
ow

nt
ow

n,
 a

nd
co

nt
in

ue
 to

 re
vi

ta
liz

e 
do

w
nt

ow
n 

D
al

la
s.

 

•
An

 e
co

no
m

ic
 a

ss
et

, f
or

 e
xa

m
pl

e,
 b

y 
ge

ne
ra

tin
g 

ta
x 

re
ve

nu
e 

on
 th

e 
si

te
 a

nd
 c

at
al

yz
in

g 
in

ve
st

m
en

t 
el

se
w

he
re

 in
 d

ow
nt

ow
n.

 

•
An

 ic
on

ic
 g

at
ew

ay
 in

to
 d

ow
nt

ow
n.

 

•
A 

pl
ac

e 
fo

r b
ot

h 
lo

ca
ls

 a
nd

 v
is

ito
rs

.

D
ra

ft
 V

is
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 P
ro

pe
rt

y

U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 4

 o
f 1

36

fperkins
Rectangle

rboileau
Image

rboileau
Snapshot

rboileau
Text Box
Project Context and Dallas' Vision

rboileau
Text Box
Project Site

rboileau
Rectangle

rboileau
Text Box
Based on the outreach conducted to date by the project team, the following points have emerged as  parts of the Dallas’ vision for a future building at 791 Main Street:      A multi-story, mixed-use building, with restaurant           or retail uses on the ground floor, and lodging                    (hotel) or housing above.     A timeless, high-quality, well-designed building                that is compatible with the surrounding historic                district.     Attract more people and activity downtown, and              continue to revitalize downtown Dallas.      An economic asset, for example, by generating                 tax revenue on the site and catalyzing investment            elsewhere in downtown.      An iconic gateway into downtown.      A place for both locals and visitors.

rboileau
Ellipse

rboileau
Ellipse

rboileau
Ellipse

rboileau
Ellipse

rboileau
Ellipse

rboileau
Ellipse

rboileau
Rectangle

rboileau
Rectangle

fperkins
Image

fperkins
Rectangle

fperkins
Image

fperkins
Text Box
Project No. 224083

fperkins
Image

fperkins
Image

fperkins
Text Box
Ethos Hospitality

https://www.dallasor.gov/ecd/page/791-main-st-project


U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 5

 o
f 1

36

rboileau
Image

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Rectangle

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Text Box
Dallas Days and Festivals(street closures and event areas)

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Text Box
Farmers Market

rboileau
Rectangle

rboileau
Arrow

rboileau
Text Box
Dallas City Park & Delbert Hunter Arboretum and Botanical Garden (0.4 miles)

rboileau
Rectangle

rboileau
Text Box
 Downtown 

rboileau
Rectangle

rboileau
Text Box
downtown shops

rboileau
Image

rboileau
Image

rboileau
Image

rboileau
Text Box
View of Project Site 

rboileau
Text Box
Across from Project Site

rboileau
Text Box
Mural facing Project Site

fperkins
Image

fperkins
Rectangle

fperkins
Image

fperkins
Text Box
Project No. 224083

fperkins
Image

fperkins
Image

fperkins
Text Box
Ethos Hospitality



U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 6

 o
f 1

36

rboileau
Image

rboileau
Image

rboileau
Text Box
Main Street (OR Route 223-Kings Valley Highway)          One-way, south bound only

rboileau
Text Box
House of His Presence

rboileau
Text Box
Polk County Offices

rboileau
Text Box
Cedar Salon & Lash Bar

rboileau
Text Box
Parkside Self Defense

rboileau
Text Box
First American Title

rboileau
Text Box
Elegant Floral

rboileau
Text Box
Alley -14' wide         One-way, north bound only

rboileau
Text Box
New Morning Bakery/Dallas

rboileau
Text Box
Domino's Pizza

rboileau
Text Box
Edward Jones / RealtyOneGroup

rboileau
Text Box
Anytime Fitness

rboileau
Text Box
US Post Office

rboileau
Text Box
Harvest CrossFit

rboileau
Text Box
Reconnections CounselingNew Life Wellness

rboileau
Text Box
Polk County Courthouse

rboileau
Text Box
South side of SW Mill St. (across from proposed site)

rboileau
Text Box
Dallas Evangelical Church

rboileau
Text Box
Dallas Community Scholl

rboileau
Text Box
Project Context and Dallas' Vision

rboileau
PolyLine

rboileau
Ellipse

rboileau
Ellipse

rboileau
Ellipse

rboileau
Text Box
Senior Center

rboileau
Ellipse

rboileau
Ellipse

rboileau
PolyLine

rboileau
PolyLine

rboileau
PolyLine

rboileau
PolyLine

rboileau
Ellipse

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Ellipse

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Ellipse

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Ellipse

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Ellipse

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Ellipse

rboileau
Ellipse

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Ellipse

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Ellipse

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Ellipse

rboileau
PolyLine

rboileau
Ellipse

rboileau
PolyLine

rboileau
Ellipse

rboileau
Ellipse

rboileau
PolyLine

rboileau
Ellipse

rboileau
PolyLine

fperkins
Image

fperkins
Rectangle

fperkins
Image

fperkins
Text Box
Project No. 224083

fperkins
Image

fperkins
Image

fperkins
Text Box
Ethos Hospitality



U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 7

 o
f 1

36

rboileau
Image

rboileau
Polygon

rboileau
Ellipse

rboileau
Ellipse

rboileau
Polygon

rboileau
Rectangle

rboileau
Rectangle

rboileau
Rectangle

rboileau
Rectangle

rboileau
Rectangle

rboileau
Rectangle

rboileau
Rectangle

rboileau
Polygon

rboileau
Rectangle

rboileau
Rectangle

rboileau
Polygon

rboileau
Polygon

rboileau
Polygon

rboileau
Rectangle

rboileau
Rectangle

rboileau
Polygon

rboileau
Polygon

rboileau
Polygon

rboileau
Rectangle

rboileau
Rectangle

rboileau
Polygon

rboileau
Polygon

rboileau
Rectangle

rboileau
Rectangle

rboileau
Rectangle

rboileau
Rectangle

rboileau
Polygon

rboileau
Polygon

rboileau
Text Box
Project Context and Amenities

rboileau
Rectangle

rboileau
Text Box
Food & Drink   bars    restaurants

rboileau
Rectangle

rboileau
Text Box
Shopping   retail

rboileau
Rectangle

rboileau
Text Box
Civic   city hall & offices    post office    county    library    event space

rboileau
Rectangle

rboileau
Text Box
Churches

rboileau
Rectangle

rboileau
Rectangle

rboileau
Rectangle

rboileau
Rectangle

rboileau
Rectangle

rboileau
Rectangle

rboileau
Polygon

rboileau
Arrow

rboileau
Text Box
Dallas City Park & Delbert Hunter Arboretum and Botanical Garden (0.4 miles)

rboileau
Text Box
Dallas Amphitheater 

rboileau
Arrow

rboileau
Rectangle

rboileau
Rectangle

rboileau
Polygon

rboileau
Rectangle

rboileau
Text Box
Fitness   gyms    martial arts

rboileau
Rectangle

fperkins
Image

fperkins
Rectangle

fperkins
Image

fperkins
Text Box
Project No. 224083

fperkins
Image

fperkins
Image

fperkins
Text Box
Ethos Hospitality



H
is

to
ric

 D
is

tr
ic

t

U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 8

 o
f 1

36

fperkins
Rectangle

rboileau
Image

rboileau
Image

rboileau
Image

rboileau
Polygon

rboileau
Rectangle

rboileau
Polygon

fperkins
Image

fperkins
Rectangle

fperkins
Image

fperkins
Text Box
Project No. 224083

fperkins
Image

fperkins
Image

fperkins
Text Box
Ethos Hospitality

https://www.dallasor.gov/sites/default/files/fileattachments/economic_and_community_development/page/6603/application_for_dallas_downtown_historic_district.pdf
https://www.dallasor.gov/sites/default/files/fileattachments/economic_and_community_development/page/6603/application_for_dallas_downtown_historic_district.pdf
https://www.dallasor.gov/sites/default/files/fileattachments/economic_and_community_development/page/6603/application_for_dallas_downtown_historic_district.pdf
https://www.dallasor.gov/sites/default/files/fileattachments/economic_and_community_development/page/6603/application_for_dallas_downtown_historic_district.pdf
https://www.dallasor.gov/sites/default/files/fileattachments/economic_and_community_development/page/6603/application_for_dallas_downtown_historic_district.pdf
https://www.dallasor.gov/sites/default/files/fileattachments/economic_and_community_development/page/6603/application_for_dallas_downtown_historic_district.pdf
https://www.dallasor.gov/sites/default/files/fileattachments/economic_and_community_development/page/6603/application_for_dallas_downtown_historic_district.pdf
https://www.dallasor.gov/sites/default/files/fileattachments/economic_and_community_development/page/6603/application_for_dallas_downtown_historic_district.pdf


79
1 

M
ai

n 
St

re
et

 | 
O

pe
n 

H
ou

se
 | 

Se
pt

em
be

r 4

Po
te

nt
ia

l S
ite

 D
es

ig
n 

Fe
at

ur
es

G
ro

un
d 

flo
or

 
Re

ta
il/

co
m

m
er

ci
al

 s
pa

ce
. 

Fu
tu

re
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

 a
t 7

91
 M

ai
n 

St
re

et
 c

ou
ld

 h
av

e 
m

an
y 

di
ffe

re
nt

 d
es

ig
n 

fe
at

ur
es

, r
eg

ar
dl

es
s 

of
 h

ow
 th

e 
up

pe
r f

lo
or

s 
ar

e 
us

ed
.  

G
ro

un
d 

flo
or

 
Re

st
au

ra
nt

.
O

ut
si

de
 D

in
in

g
O

ut
si

de
 D

in
in

g 
on

 th
e 

M
ill

 S
t. 

si
de

w
al

k 
W

in
e 

ta
st

in
g 

ro
om

 
fe

at
ur

in
g 

th
e 

w
in

es
 o

f P
ol

k 
C

ou
nt

y.

A 
pl

az
a 

th
at

 is
 o

pe
n 

to
 th

e 
pu

bl
ic

.
Ro

of
to

p 
D

ec
k.

Sp
ac

e 
fo

r 
co

m
m

un
ity

 g
at

he
rin

gs
.

W
id

en
in

g 
th

e 
si

de
w

al
k 

on
 M

ill
to

 m
at

ch
 th

e 
de

si
gn

 o
n 

th
e 

so
ut

h 
si

de
 o

f 
M

ill
 S

tr
ee

t (
sh

ow
n 

be
lo

w
).

Pu
bl

ic
 a

cc
es

s 
to

 th
e 

m
ur

al
 o

n 
no

rt
h 

si
de

 o
f t

he
 p

ro
pe

rt
y.

U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 9

 o
f 1

36

rboileau
Rectangle

rboileau
Text Box
Widening the sidewalk to match the design on the south of Mill St. 

rboileau
Rectangle

rboileau
Text Box
Public access to the mural on north side of the property.

fperkins
Image

fperkins
Rectangle

fperkins
Image

fperkins
Text Box
Project No. 224083

fperkins
Image

fperkins
Image

fperkins
Text Box
Ethos Hospitality



U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 1

0 
of

 1
36

rboileau
Text Box
JACKSON ST W

rboileau
Text Box
WARREN ST S

rboileau
Text Box
MAIN ST W

rboileau
Text Box
MONMOUTH ST N

rboileau
Text Box
Project Site | Dallas, Oregon

rboileau
Snapshot

rboileau
Snapshot

rboileau
Snapshot

rboileau
Text Box
Atticus Hotel | McMinnville, Oregon

rboileau
Text Box
The Independence Hotel | Independence, Oregon 

rboileau
Text Box
Monmouth Commons | Monmouth, Oregon

rboileau
Snapshot

rboileau
Polygon

rboileau
Rectangle

rboileau
Polygon

rboileau
Rectangle

rboileau
Text Box

rboileau
Text Box
Comparable Projects

fperkins
Image

fperkins
Rectangle

fperkins
Image

fperkins
Text Box
Project No. 224083

fperkins
Image

fperkins
Image

fperkins
Text Box
Ethos Hospitality



U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 1

1 
of

 1
36

rboileau
Text Box
Sept. 2024

rboileau
Rectangle

rboileau
Rectangle

rboileau
Text Box
Massing model

rboileau
Rectangle

fperkins
Rectangle

fperkins
Image

fperkins
Rectangle

fperkins
Image

fperkins
Text Box
Project No. 224083

fperkins
Image

fperkins
Image

fperkins
Text Box
Ethos Hospitality

fperkins
Snapshot

fperkins
Image

fperkins
Image

fperkins
Image

fperkins
Snapshot

fperkins
Polygon

fperkins
Rectangle

fperkins
Rectangle

fperkins
Rectangle

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Polygon

fperkins
Rectangle

fperkins
Text Box
restaurant 3,250 sf

fperkins
Text Box
wine bar1,500 sf

fperkins
Text Box
toilets

fperkins
Rectangle

fperkins
Rectangle

fperkins
Rectangle

fperkins
Text Box
b.o.h.(if needed)3,324 sf

fperkins
Text Box
outside seating/dining90' x 30'

fperkins
Rectangle

fperkins
Text Box
kitchen

fperkins
Text Box
bar

fperkins
Polygon

fperkins
Text Box
ramp

fperkins
Text Box
floor 2

fperkins
Text Box
hotel rooms 

fperkins
Text Box
floor 3

fperkins
Text Box
hotel rooms 

fperkins
Text Box
floor 4

fperkins
Text Box
hotel roomsroof terrace 

fperkins
Rectangle

fperkins
Text Box
floor 1

fperkins
Text Box
restaurantlobbyretail 

fperkins
Text Box
60'

fperkins
Text Box
60'

fperkins
PolyLine

fperkins
Ellipse

fperkins
Ellipse

fperkins
Ellipse

fperkins
Ellipse

fperkins
Ellipse

fperkins
Ellipse

fperkins
Ellipse

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
PolyLine

fperkins
Text Box
service and pedestrian circulation

fperkins
Polygon

rboileau
Text Box
outline of building above

rboileau
Text Box
190'

rboileau
Text Box
60'

rboileau
Polygon

rboileau
Rectangle

rboileau
Polygon

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Rectangle

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Rectangle

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Rectangle

fperkins
Text Box
admin. & b.o.h.1,800sf

rboileau
Polygon

fperkins
Text Box
hotel(lobby, reception.)4,300 sf

rboileau
Rectangle

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Text Box
18 parking stalls

rboileau
PolyLine

rboileau
Snapshot

rboileau
Text Box
Option 1A: Boutique Hotel, Four Stories

rboileau
Text Box
12 rooms / 4 flr.17 rooms / 3 flr.17 rooms / 2 flr.  0 rooms / 1 flr.47 total units

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Text Box
off-street parking18 stalls; .38 stalls/unit

rboileau
Rectangle

rboileau
Text Box
4

rboileau
Rectangle

rboileau
Text Box
3

rboileau
Rectangle



U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 1

2 
of

 1
36

rboileau
Text Box
Sept. 2024

rboileau
Rectangle

rboileau
Rectangle

rboileau
Text Box
Massing model

fperkins
Rectangle

fperkins
Image

fperkins
Rectangle

fperkins
Image

fperkins
Text Box
Project No. 224083

fperkins
Image

fperkins
Image

fperkins
Text Box
Ethos Hospitality

fperkins
Snapshot

fperkins
Image

fperkins
Snapshot

fperkins
Image

fperkins
Polygon

fperkins
Rectangle

fperkins
Rectangle

fperkins
Rectangle

fperkins
Polygon

fperkins
Rectangle

fperkins
Rectangle

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Rectangle

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Rectangle

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Polygon

fperkins
Polygon

fperkins
Rectangle

fperkins
Text Box
restaurant 3,250 sf

fperkins
Text Box
wine bar1,500 sf

fperkins
Text Box
toilets

fperkins
Text Box
b.o.h.1,000 sf

fperkins
Rectangle

fperkins
Text Box
admin. & b.o.h.1,600 sf

fperkins
Polygon

fperkins
Text Box
hotel(lobby, reception.)2,325 sf

fperkins
Rectangle

fperkins
Rectangle

fperkins
Text Box
service and pedestrian circulation

fperkins
Rectangle

fperkins
Text Box
b.o.h.(if needed)3,324 sf

fperkins
Text Box
secure surface parking 18 stalls

fperkins
Text Box
outside seating/dining90' x 30'

fperkins
Rectangle

fperkins
Text Box
kitchen

fperkins
Text Box
bar

fperkins
Polygon

fperkins
Text Box
12 rooms / 5 flr.17 rooms / 4 flr.17 rooms / 3 flr.17 rooms / 2 flr.  0 rooms / 1 flr.63 total units

fperkins
Text Box
floor 2

fperkins
Text Box
hotel rooms 

fperkins
Text Box
floor 3

fperkins
Text Box
hotel rooms 

fperkins
Text Box
hotel rooms 

fperkins
Text Box
floor 5

fperkins
Text Box
hotel roomsroof terrace 

fperkins
Rectangle

fperkins
Text Box
floor 1

fperkins
Text Box
restaurantlobbyretail 

fperkins
Text Box
floor 4

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Text Box
60'

fperkins
Text Box
60'

fperkins
Text Box
floors 2-4 (+/-17 rooms)

fperkins
Text Box
floor 5 (+/-12 rooms)

fperkins
PolyLine

fperkins
Ellipse

fperkins
Ellipse

fperkins
Ellipse

fperkins
Ellipse

fperkins
Ellipse

fperkins
Ellipse

fperkins
Ellipse

fperkins
Ellipse

fperkins
Polygon

fperkins
Polygon

fperkins
Polygon

fperkins
Rectangle

fperkins
Rectangle

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Polygon

fperkins
Text Box
outdoor terrace2,400 sf

fperkins
Rectangle

fperkins
Rectangle

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Polygon

fperkins
Rectangle

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Text Box
190'

fperkins
Text Box
190'

fperkins
Rectangle

fperkins
Rectangle

fperkins
Rectangle

fperkins
Rectangle

fperkins
Rectangle

fperkins
Rectangle

fperkins
Rectangle

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Polygon

fperkins
Rectangle

fperkins
Rectangle

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Rectangle

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Rectangle

fperkins
Rectangle

fperkins
Polygon

fperkins
Rectangle

fperkins
Rectangle

fperkins
Rectangle

fperkins
Text Box
ramp

fperkins
Text Box
toilets

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Text Box
mural

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
PolyLine

fperkins
Image

rboileau
Text Box
Option 1B: Boutique Hotel, Five Stories

rboileau
Text Box
off-street parking18 stalls; .28 stalls/unit

rboileau
Rectangle



U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 1

3 
of

 1
36

rboileau
Rectangle

rboileau
Rectangle

rboileau
Text Box
outdoor terrace2,400 sf

rboileau
Rectangle

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Rectangle

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Text Box
190'

rboileau
Rectangle

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Polygon

rboileau
Polygon

rboileau
Rectangle

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Rectangle

rboileau
Rectangle

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Rectangle

rboileau
Rectangle

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Rectangle

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Polygon

rboileau
Polygon

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Polygon

rboileau
Polygon

rboileau
Rectangle

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Rectangle

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Rectangle

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Rectangle

rboileau
Rectangle

rboileau
Rectangle

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Rectangle

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Polygon

rboileau
Rectangle

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Rectangle

rboileau
Rectangle

rboileau
Text Box
60'

rboileau
Text Box
130'

rboileau
Image

rboileau
Text Box
typical floor (+/-23 rooms)

rboileau
Text Box
top floor (+/-18 rooms)

rboileau
Text Box
Option 1C: Boutique Hotel, Five Stories, L Shape

rboileau
Image

rboileau
Rectangle

rboileau
Image

rboileau
Text Box
Project No. 224083

rboileau
Image

rboileau
Image

rboileau
Text Box
Ethos Hospitality

rboileau
Snapshot

rboileau
Text Box
18 rooms / 5 flr.23 rooms / 4 flr.23 rooms / 3 flr.23 rooms / 2 flr.  0 rooms / 1 flr.87 total units

rboileau
Text Box
off-street parking18 stalls; .20 stalls/unit

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Rectangle

rboileau
Polygon

rboileau
Rectangle

rboileau
Rectangle

rboileau
Rectangle

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Polygon

rboileau
Rectangle

rboileau
Text Box
restaurant 3,250 sf

rboileau
Text Box
wine bar1,500 sf

rboileau
Text Box
toilets

rboileau
Rectangle

rboileau
Rectangle

rboileau
Rectangle

rboileau
Text Box
b.o.h.(if needed)3,324 sf

rboileau
Text Box
outside seating/dining90' x 30'

rboileau
Rectangle

rboileau
Text Box
kitchen

rboileau
Text Box
bar

rboileau
Polygon

rboileau
PolyLine

rboileau
Ellipse

rboileau
Ellipse

rboileau
Ellipse

rboileau
Ellipse

rboileau
Ellipse

rboileau
Ellipse

rboileau
Ellipse

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Line

rboileau
PolyLine

rboileau
Text Box
service and pedestrian circulation

rboileau
Polygon

rboileau
Text Box
outline of building above

rboileau
Text Box
190'

rboileau
Text Box
60'

rboileau
Polygon

rboileau
Rectangle

rboileau
Polygon

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Rectangle

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Rectangle

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Rectangle

rboileau
Text Box
admin. & b.o.h.1,800sf

rboileau
Polygon

rboileau
Text Box
hotel(lobby, reception.)4,300 sf

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Text Box
18 parking stalls

rboileau
PolyLine

rboileau
Rectangle



U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 1

4 
of

 1
36

rboileau
Text Box
Sept. 2024

rboileau
Rectangle

rboileau
Rectangle

rboileau
Text Box
Massing model

fperkins
Rectangle

fperkins
Image

fperkins
Rectangle

fperkins
Image

fperkins
Text Box
Project No. 224083

fperkins
Image

fperkins
Image

fperkins
Text Box
Ethos Hospitality

fperkins
Snapshot

fperkins
Image

fperkins
Snapshot

fperkins
Text Box
12 units / 4 flr.17 units / 3 flr.17 units / 2 flr.  0 units / 1flr.47 total units

fperkins
Rectangle

fperkins
Text Box
floor 2

fperkins
Text Box
units 

fperkins
Text Box
floor 3

fperkins
Text Box
units 

fperkins
Text Box
floor 4

fperkins
Text Box
unitsroof terrace 

fperkins
Text Box
restaurantlobbyretail 

fperkins
Text Box
floor 1

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Text Box
floors 2-3 (+/-17 units)

fperkins
Text Box
floor 4 (+/-12 units)

fperkins
Rectangle

fperkins
Polygon

fperkins
Polygon

fperkins
Rectangle

fperkins
Rectangle

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Rectangle

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Polygon

fperkins
Polygon

fperkins
Rectangle

fperkins
Rectangle

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Rectangle

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Polygon

fperkins
Text Box
ramp

fperkins
Text Box
toilets

fperkins
Rectangle

fperkins
Text Box
9,500 gsf

fperkins
Text Box
12,100 gsf

fperkins
Rectangle

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Text Box
outdoor terrace2,625 sf

fperkins
Text Box
190'

fperkins
Text Box
65'

fperkins
Text Box
190'

fperkins
Text Box
65'

fperkins
Image

fperkins
Polygon

fperkins
Rectangle

fperkins
Rectangle

fperkins
Rectangle

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Rectangle

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Polygon

fperkins
Text Box
wine bar1,500 sf

fperkins
Rectangle

fperkins
Text Box
trash/recycling/mech./elec.

fperkins
Text Box
service/loading circulation

fperkins
Rectangle

fperkins
PolyLine

fperkins
Rectangle

fperkins
Polygon

fperkins
Text Box
tuck-under parking12 stalls

fperkins
Rectangle

fperkins
PolyLine

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
PolyLine

fperkins
Text Box
restaurant 2,450 sf

fperkins
Text Box
support

fperkins
Polygon

fperkins
Text Box
lobby(mail, rec. space)2,000 sf

fperkins
PolyLine

fperkins
Rectangle

fperkins
Ellipse

fperkins
Ellipse

fperkins
Ellipse

fperkins
Ellipse

fperkins
Ellipse

fperkins
PolyLine

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Polygon

fperkins
Polygon

fperkins
Polygon

fperkins
Polygon

fperkins
Polygon

fperkins
PolyLine

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Text Box
surface parking9 stalls

fperkins
Text Box
tuck-under parking6 stalls

fperkins
Polygon

fperkins
Rectangle

fperkins
Text Box
sidewalk

fperkins
Polygon

fperkins
Image

rboileau
Text Box
off-street parking27 stalls; .57 stalls/unit

rboileau
Text Box
Option 2A: Housing, Four Stories

rboileau
Rectangle



U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 1

5 
of

 1
36

rboileau
Text Box
Sept. 2024

rboileau
Rectangle

rboileau
Rectangle

rboileau
Text Box
Massing model

fperkins
Rectangle

fperkins
Image

fperkins
Rectangle

fperkins
Image

fperkins
Text Box
Project No. 224083

fperkins
Image

fperkins
Image

fperkins
Text Box
Ethos Hospitality

fperkins
Snapshot

fperkins
Image

fperkins
Snapshot

fperkins
Image

fperkins
Polygon

fperkins
Rectangle

fperkins
Rectangle

fperkins
Rectangle

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Rectangle

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Polygon

fperkins
Text Box
wine bar1,500 sf

fperkins
Rectangle

fperkins
Text Box
trash/recycling/mech./elec.

fperkins
Text Box
service/loading circulation

fperkins
Rectangle

fperkins
Text Box
floors 2-4 (+/-17 units)

fperkins
Text Box
floor 5 (+/-12 units)

fperkins
Rectangle

fperkins
Polygon

fperkins
Polygon

fperkins
Rectangle

fperkins
Rectangle

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Rectangle

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Polygon

fperkins
Polygon

fperkins
Rectangle

fperkins
Rectangle

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Rectangle

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Polygon

fperkins
Text Box
ramp

fperkins
Text Box
toilets

fperkins
Rectangle

fperkins
Text Box
9,500 gsf

fperkins
Text Box
12,100 gsf

fperkins
Rectangle

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Text Box
floor 2

fperkins
Text Box
units 

fperkins
Text Box
floor 3

fperkins
Text Box
units 

fperkins
Text Box
floor 4

fperkins
Text Box
units 

fperkins
Text Box
floor 5

fperkins
Text Box
unitsroof terrace 

fperkins
Rectangle

fperkins
Text Box
restaurantlobbyretail 

fperkins
Text Box
floor 1

fperkins
PolyLine

fperkins
Text Box
outdoor terrace2,625 sf

fperkins
Text Box
190'

fperkins
Text Box
65'

fperkins
Text Box
190'

fperkins
Text Box
65'

fperkins
Rectangle

fperkins
Polygon

fperkins
Text Box
tuck-under parking12 stalls

fperkins
Rectangle

fperkins
PolyLine

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
PolyLine

fperkins
Text Box
restaurant 2,450 sf

fperkins
Text Box
support

fperkins
Polygon

fperkins
Text Box
lobby(mail, rec. space)2,000 sf

fperkins
PolyLine

fperkins
Rectangle

fperkins
Ellipse

fperkins
Ellipse

fperkins
Ellipse

fperkins
Ellipse

fperkins
Ellipse

fperkins
PolyLine

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Polygon

fperkins
Polygon

fperkins
Polygon

fperkins
Polygon

fperkins
Polygon

fperkins
Polygon

fperkins
PolyLine

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Text Box
surface parking9 stalls

fperkins
Text Box
tuck-under parking6 stalls

fperkins
Text Box
12 units / 5 flr.17 units / 4 flr.17 units / 3 flr.17 units / 2 flr.  0 units / 1flr.63 total units

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Line

fperkins
Rectangle

fperkins
Text Box
sidewalk

fperkins
Polygon

fperkins
Image

fperkins
Line

rboileau
Text Box
off-street parking27 stalls; .42 stalls/unit

rboileau
Text Box
Option 2B: Housing, Five Stories

rboileau
Rectangle



U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 1

6 
of

 1
36

rboileau
Rectangle

rboileau
Image

rboileau
Polygon

rboileau
PolyLine

rboileau
Ellipse

rboileau
Ellipse

rboileau
Ellipse

rboileau
Ellipse

rboileau
Ellipse

rboileau
Ellipse

rboileau
Ellipse

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Text Box
190'

rboileau
Polygon

rboileau
Rectangle

rboileau
Rectangle

rboileau
Rectangle

rboileau
Rectangle

rboileau
Image

rboileau
Image

rboileau
Image

rboileau
Image

rboileau
Image

rboileau
Image

rboileau
Text Box
food carts

rboileau
Text Box
food carts

rboileau
Text Box
beer/wine tent

rboileau
Text Box
60'

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Line

rboileau
PolyLine

rboileau
Text Box
outline of building above

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Text Box
 parking stalls

rboileau
Rectangle

rboileau
Line

rboileau
Rectangle

rboileau
Text Box
60' mural

rboileau
Text Box
toilets

rboileau
Text Box
outside seating/dining100' x 35'

rboileau
Text Box
 parking stalls

rboileau
Text Box
Option 3: Dallas Wine Village

rboileau
Image

rboileau
Rectangle

rboileau
Image

rboileau
Text Box
Project No. 224083

rboileau
Image

rboileau
Image

rboileau
Text Box
Ethos Hospitality

rboileau
Snapshot

rboileau
Image

rboileau
Image

rboileau
Image

rboileau
Image

rboileau
Text Box
Up to 16 food cartsBeer & Wine tentOutside seating/dining24 off-street parking spacesAdditional on-street parking and potentially shared off-street parking on nearby properties 

rboileau
Rectangle

rboileau
Rectangle

rboileau
Rectangle

rboileau
Rectangle

rboileau
Rectangle

rboileau
Rectangle



79
1 

M
ai

n 
St

re
et

 | 
O

pe
n 

H
ou

se
 | 

Se
pt

em
be

r 4

D
es

ig
n 

C
om

pa
tib

ili
ty

O
ne

 p
ar

t o
f t

he
 p

re
lim

in
ar

y 
vi

si
on

 fo
r t

he
 s

ite
 is

 th
at

 fu
tu

re
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

 a
t 7

91
 M

ai
n 

St
re

et
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 
“c

om
pa

ti
bl

e 
w

it
h 

th
e 

su
rr

ou
nd

in
g 

hi
st

or
ic

 d
is

tr
ic

t.
” 

 In
 te

rm
s 

of
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

de
si

gn
, w

hi
ch

 o
f t

he
 fo

llo
w

in
g 

bu
ild

in
gs

 d
o 

yo
u 

th
in

k 
w

ou
ld

 b
e 

co
m

pa
tib

le
 w

ith
 th

e 
hi

st
or

ic
 s

ur
ro

un
di

ng
s 

an
d 

an
 a

cc
ep

ta
bl

e 
ad

di
tio

n 
to

 D
ow

nt
ow

n 
D

al
la

s?
 

 H
is

to
ric

 D
ow

nt
ow

ns
 –

 D
es

ig
n 

Fe
at

ur
es

Tr
ip

ar
tit

e 
D

es
ig

n 
(B

as
e,

 
m

id
dl

e,
 to

p)
 w

ith
 ta

ll 
gr

ou
nd

 fl
oo

r. 

An
gl

ed
/c

or
ne

r 
en

tr
an

ce
 

La
rg

e 
w

in
do

w
s 

on
 g

ro
un

d 
flo

or
Si

gn
ag

e 
th

at
 e

xt
en

ds
 fr

om
 

bu
ild

in
g 

fa
ca

de
s

TB
D

U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 1

7 
of

 1
36

rboileau
Rectangle

rboileau
Image

rboileau
Rectangle

rboileau
Image

rboileau
Image

rboileau
Rectangle

rboileau
Text Box
Awnings that extend for shade, signage and rain protection 

rboileau
Text Box
Signage that 

rboileau
Text Box
extends from 

rboileau
Text Box
building facade



Pr
oj

ec
t S

ch
ed

ul
e

U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 1

8 
of

 1
36

rboileau
Rectangle

rboileau
Snapshot

rboileau
Snapshot

fperkins
Image

fperkins
Rectangle

fperkins
Image

fperkins
Text Box
Project No. 224083

fperkins
Image

fperkins
Image

fperkins
Text Box
Ethos Hospitality



79
1 

M
ai

n 
St

re
et

 | 
O

pe
n 

H
ou

se
 | 

Se
pt

em
be

r 4

Yo
ur

 T
ho

ug
ht

s 
Pl

ea
se

!

U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 1

9 
of

 1
36

fperkins
Image

fperkins
Rectangle

fperkins
Image

fperkins
Text Box
Project No. 224083

fperkins
Image

fperkins
Image

fperkins
Text Box
Ethos Hospitality

fperkins
Text Box
• Is the vision statement shown on the Open House Boards tonight consistent with your vision for 791 Main Street in the future?• What are you most excited about seeing at the 791 Main Street site in the future?• Which of the four design options do you like best and why?• What else do you want the project team to known?



1

7
9

1 
M

A
IN

 S
T

.
C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
 S

U
R

V
E

Y
 S

U
M

M
A

R
Y

O
ct

o
b

er
 3

0
, 2

0
24

LR
S 

A
rc

h
it

ec
tu

re
E

th
o

s 
H

o
sp

it
al

it
y 

U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 2

0 
of

 1
36



2

In
tr

o
d

u
c

ti
o

n

•
F

ro
m

 A
u

g
u

st
 2

1 t
o

 S
ep

te
m

b
er

 18
, 2

0
24

, t
h

e 
C

it
y 

h
o

st
ed

 a
n

 o
n

lin
e 

su
rv

ey
 

ab
o

u
t 

th
e 

79
1 M

ai
n

 S
tr

ee
t 

p
ro

je
ct

. 

•
Th

is
 p

re
se

n
ta

ti
on

 s
u

m
m

ar
iz

es
 t

h
e 

m
ai

n
 r

es
u

lt
s 

o
f t

h
e 

su
rv

ey
.

•
Th

e 
p

u
rp

o
se

 w
as

 t
o

 g
et

 t
h

e 
p

u
b

lic
’s

 o
p

in
io

n
s 

ab
o

u
t 

va
ri

o
u

s 
as

p
ec

ts
 o

f 
th

e 
p

ro
je

ct
, i

n
cl

u
d

in
g

 t
h

e 
p

ro
je

ct
 v

is
io

n
, s

p
ec

ifi
c 

u
se

s 
w

it
h

in
 fu

tu
re

 
b

u
ild

in
g

s 
o

n
 t

h
e 

si
te

, d
es

ig
n

 c
o

n
ce

p
ts

, d
es

ig
n

 fe
at

u
re

s,
 a

n
d

 o
th

er
 is

su
es

.

•
18

4
 r

es
p

on
d

en
ts

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 t

h
e 

su
rv

ey
, w

h
ic

h
 is

 s
im

ila
r 

to
 t

h
e 

re
sp

o
n

se
 

le
ve

ls
 t

h
e 

C
it

y 
h

as
 h

ad
 fo

r 
o

th
er

 s
u

rv
ey

s 
o

n
 im

p
o

rt
an

t 
p

ro
je

ct
s.

 (N
o

te
 

th
at

 n
o

t 
al

l r
es

p
o

n
d

en
ts

 a
n

sw
er

ed
 a

ll 
q

u
es

ti
o

n
s,

 in
 w

h
ic

h
 c

as
e 

th
e 

n
u

m
b

er
 o

f r
es

p
o

n
se

s 
is

 le
ss

 t
h

an
 18

4
. I

n
 s

o
m

e 
ca

se
s,

 r
es

p
o

n
d

en
ts

 w
er

e 
al

lo
w

ed
 t

o
 p

ro
vi

d
e 

m
u

lt
ip

le
 a

n
sw

er
s 

to
 q

u
es

ti
o

n
s,

 s
o

 t
h

e 
to

ta
l n

u
m

b
er

 o
f 

re
sp

o
n

se
s 

ex
ce

ed
s 

18
4

.) 

•
Th

e 
q

u
es

ti
o

n
s 

w
er

e 
p

re
p

ar
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

C
it

y 
an

d
 c

o
n

su
lt

an
t 

F
o

ru
m

 
P

la
ce

m
ak

in
g

, b
as

ed
 o

n
 s

it
e 

d
es

ig
n

 c
o

n
ce

p
ts

 p
re

p
ar

ed
 b

y 
LR

S 
A

rc
h

it
ec

ts
. 

•
Th

e 
C

it
y 

an
d

 c
o

n
su

lt
an

t 
te

am
 a

ls
o

 g
at

h
er

ed
 o

th
er

 fe
ed

b
ac

k 
fo

r 
th

is
 

p
ro

je
ct

 v
ia

 a
 p

u
b

lic
 o

p
en

 h
o

u
se

, s
ta

ke
h

ol
d

er
 in

te
rv

ie
w

s,
 a

n
d

 a
 

p
re

se
n

ta
ti

on
 t

o
 t

h
e 

U
R

D
A

C
. 

U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 2

1 
of

 1
36



3

V
is

io
n

 S
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
F

e
e

d
b

a
c

k

•
Su

rv
ey

 r
es

p
o

n
d

en
ts

 w
er

e 
p

ro
vi

d
ed

 w
it

h
 t

h
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 s

ix
 v

is
io

n
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 fo

r 
w

h
at

 a
 fu

tu
re

 
b

u
ild

in
g

 a
t 

79
1 

M
ai

n
 S

tr
ee

t 
co

u
ld

 b
e:

•
A

 m
u

lt
i-

st
o

ry
, m

ix
ed

-u
se

 b
u

ild
in

g
, w

it
h

 
re

st
au

ra
n

t 
o

r 
re

ta
il 

u
se

s 
o

n
 t

h
e 

g
ro

u
n

d
 fl

o
o

r, 
an

d
 lo

d
g

in
g

 (h
o

te
l) 

o
r 

h
o

u
si

n
g

 a
b

o
ve

.
•

A
 t

im
el

es
s,

 h
ig

h
-q

u
al

it
y,

 w
el

l-
d

es
ig

n
ed

 
b

u
ild

in
g

 t
h

at
 is

 c
o

m
p

at
ib

le
 w

it
h

 t
h

e 
su

rr
o

u
n

d
in

g
 h

is
to

ri
c 

d
is

tr
ic

t.
•

A
tt

ra
ct

 m
o

re
 p

eo
p

le
 a

n
d

 a
ct

iv
it

y 
d

o
w

n
to

w
n

  
an

d
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e 

to
 r

ev
it

al
iz

e 
d

o
w

n
to

w
n

 D
al

la
s.

•
A

n
 e

co
n

o
m

ic
 a

ss
et

, f
o

r 
ex

am
p

le
, b

y 
g

en
er

at
in

g
 t

ax
 r

ev
en

u
e 

o
n

 t
h

e 
si

te
 a

n
d

 
ca

ta
ly

zi
n

g
 in

ve
st

m
en

t 
el

se
w

h
er

e 
in

 
d

o
w

n
to

w
n

.
•

A
n

 ic
o

n
ic

 g
at

ew
ay

 in
to

 d
o

w
n

to
w

n
.

•
A

 p
la

ce
 fo

r 
b

o
th

 lo
ca

ls
 a

n
d

 v
is

it
o

rs
.

8
3 

p
er

ce
n

t 
o

f r
es

p
o

n
d

en
ts

 e
it

h
er

 s
tr

o
n

g
ly

 a
g

re
ed

 
o

r 
so

m
ew

h
at

 a
g

re
ed

 w
it

h
 t

h
is

 v
is

io
n

 s
ta

te
m

en
t.

 

U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 2

2 
of

 1
36



4

V
is

io
n

 S
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
F

e
e

d
b

a
c

k

W
h

ic
h

 o
f t

h
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 b

es
t 

re
fl

ec
ts

 y
o

u
r 

vi
si

o
n

 fo
r 

79
1 

M
ai

n
 S

tr
ee

t?
 

P
ic

ku
p

 t
o

 t
h

re
e.

M
o

st
 p

o
p

u
la

r:

A
ls

o
 p

o
p

u
la

r:

U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 2

3 
of

 1
36



5

D
o

w
n

to
w

n
 V

is
it

a
ti

o
n

I g
o

 t
o

 D
o

w
n

to
w

n
 D

al
la

s:

U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 2

4 
of

 1
36



6

B
u

il
d

in
g

 U
se

s

W
h

ic
h

 o
f t

h
es

e 
u

se
s 

w
o

u
ld

 y
o

u
 p

re
fe

r 
to

 s
ee

 o
n

 t
h

e 
u

p
p

er
 s

to
ri

es
 o

f a
 fu

tu
re

 b
u

ild
in

g
 a

t 
79

1 
M

ai
n

 S
tr

ee
t?

70

38

21

51

Lo
dg

in
g/

Bo
ut

iq
ue

 H
ot

el

H
ou

si
ng

O
ffi

ce
s

O
th

er

Lo
d

g
in

g
 is

 t
h

e 
p

re
fe

rr
ed

 
u

se
 fo

r 
u

p
p

er
 s

to
ri

es
, b

y 
a 

si
g

n
ifi

ca
n

t 
m

ar
g

in
; 

lo
d

g
in

g
 is

 a
b

o
u

t 
8

4
%

 
m

o
re

 p
o

p
u

la
r 

th
an

 
h

o
u

si
n

g
.

O
th

er
 u

se
s 

ar
e 

al
so

 
d

es
ir

ab
le

; h
o

w
ev

er
, t

h
e 

ty
p

es
 o

f o
th

er
 u

se
s 

p
ro

vi
d

ed
 b

y 
p

ar
ti

ci
p

an
ts

 
ra

n
g

es
 w

id
el

y.
 

U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 2

5 
of

 1
36



7

B
e

st
 D

e
si

g
n

 C
o

n
c

e
p

t?

Q
13

: “
W

h
ic

h
 o

f t
h

e 
p

re
lim

in
ar

y 
d

es
ig

n
 c

o
n

ce
p

ts
 s

h
o

w
n

 a
b

o
ve

 b
es

t 
m

at
ch

es
 w

h
at

 y
o

u
 

w
o

u
ld

 li
ke

 t
o

 s
ee

 a
t 

79
1 

M
ai

n
 S

tr
ee

t?
 (P

ic
k 

o
n

e.
)”

64

49
39

28

U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 2

6 
of

 1
36



8

A
c

c
e

p
ta

b
le

 D
e

si
g

n
 C

o
n

c
e

p
ts

?

Q
14

: “
W

h
ic

h
 o

f t
h

e 
p

re
lim

in
ar

y 
d

es
ig

n
 o

p
ti

o
n

s 
sh

o
w

n
 a

b
o

ve
 w

o
u

ld
 b

e 
a

cc
ep

ta
b

le
 t

o
 y

o
u

 
at

 7
91

 M
ai

n
 S

tr
ee

t?
”

10
5

10
2

73
69

A
b

o
u

t 
58

%
 (1

0
0

+ 
o

f 1
8

0
) 

o
f r

es
p

o
n

d
en

ts
 t

h
in

k 
b

o
th

 t
h

e 
fo

u
r 

an
d

 fi
ve

 
st

o
ry

 h
o

te
l d

es
ig

n
 a

re
  

ac
ce

p
ta

b
le

.

A
b

o
u

t 
4

0
%

 o
f 

re
sp

o
n

d
en

ts
 t

h
in

k 
th

e 
h

o
u

si
n

g
 d

es
ig

n
s 

ar
e 

ac
ce

p
ta

b
le

.

U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 2

7 
of

 1
36



9

S
it

e
 D

e
si

g
n

 F
e

a
tu

re
s

P
ar

ti
ci

p
an

ts
 w

er
e 

p
ro

vi
d

ed
 w

it
h

 im
ag

es
 o

f t
h

e 
p

o
te

n
ti

al
 fe

at
u

re
s 

sh
o

w
n

 b
el

o
w

, r
ep

re
se

n
ti

n
g

 t
h

e 
ty

p
es

 
o

f f
ea

tu
re

s 
th

at
 s

it
e 

co
u

ld
 in

cl
u

d
e 

o
n

ce
 it

 is
 r

ed
ev

el
o

p
ed

. 

U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 2

8 
of

 1
36



10

S
it

e
 D

e
si

g
n

 F
e

a
tu

re
s

Sh
o

u
ld

 t
h

e 
fe

at
u

re
 s

h
o

w
n

 a
b

o
ve

 b
e 

in
cl

u
d

ed
 in

 a
 fu

tu
re

 b
u

ild
in

g
 a

t 
79

1 
M

ai
n

 S
tr

ee
t?

92
75

69

35
35

56

99

44

10
1

55
63

73

47
55

63

41

44

39

Ye
s,

 d
ef

in
ite

ly
Ye

s,
 th

is
 w

ou
ld

 b
e 

ni
ce

 to
 h

av
e,

 b
ut

 n
ot

 n
ec

es
sa

ry

U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 2

9 
of

 1
36



11

S
it

e
 D

e
si

g
n

 F
e

a
tu

re
s

R
es

p
o

n
d

en
ts

 t
h

in
k 

th
e 

m
o

st
 im

p
o

rt
an

t 
fe

at
u

re
s 

to
 in

cl
u

d
e 

ar
e 

g
ro

u
n

d
 fl

o
o

r 
re

ta
il/

co
m

m
er

ci
al

 s
p

ac
e,

 a
 

ro
o

ft
o

p
 d

ec
k,

 a
n

d
 w

id
en

ed
 s

id
ew

al
k 

o
n

 M
ill

 S
tr

ee
t. 

92
75

69

35
35

56

99

44

10
1

55
63

73

47
55

63

41

44

39

Ye
s,

 d
ef

in
ite

ly
Ye

s,
 th

is
 w

ou
ld

 b
e 

ni
ce

 to
 h

av
e,

 b
ut

 n
ot

 n
ec

es
sa

ry

To
p

 3
To

p
 3

To
p

 3

U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 3

0 
of

 1
36



12

C
o

m
p

a
ti

b
il

it
y

O
n

e 
p

ar
t 

o
f t

h
e 

p
re

lim
in

ar
y 

vi
si

o
n

 fo
r 

th
e 

si
te

 is
 t

h
at

 
fu

tu
re

 b
u

ild
in

g
s 

at
 7

91
 M

ai
n

 S
tr

ee
t 

sh
o

u
ld

 b
e 

“c
o

m
p

at
ib

le
 

w
it

h
 t

h
e 

su
rr

o
u

n
d

in
g

 h
is

to
ri

c 
d

is
tr

ic
t.”

 

Q
u

es
ti

o
n

s 
25

 t
o

 2
9:

 “
In

 t
er

m
s 

o
f b

u
ild

in
g

 d
es

ig
n

, w
h

ic
h

 o
f 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 b

u
ild

in
g

s 
d

o
 y

o
u

 t
h

in
k 

w
o

u
ld

 b
e 

co
m

p
at

ib
le

 w
it

h
 t

h
e 

h
is

to
ri

c 
su

rr
o

u
n

d
in

g
s 

an
d

 a
n

 
ac

ce
p

ta
b

le
 a

d
d

it
io

n
 t

o
 D

o
w

n
to

w
n

 D
al

la
s?

” U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 3

1 
of

 1
36



13

C
o

m
p

a
ti

b
il

it
y

Th
e 

ch
ar

t 
b

el
o

w
 s

h
o

w
s 

th
e 

n
u

m
b

er
 o

f r
es

p
o

n
d

en
ts

 t
h

at
 v

ie
w

 e
ac

h
 b

u
ild

in
g

 a
s 

ei
th

er
 v

er
y 

o
r 

so
m

ew
h

at
 

co
m

p
at

ib
le

, a
n

d
 t

h
e 

p
er

ce
n

t 
(e

.g
., 

73
%

 o
f 1

8
4

 r
es

p
o

n
d

en
ts

 v
ie

w
 t

h
e 

b
u

ild
in

g
 a

t 
le

ft
 a

s 
ei

th
er

 v
er

y 
o

r 
so

m
ew

h
at

 c
o

m
p

at
ib

le
.) 

D
al

la
s 

re
si

d
en

ts
 c

le
ar

ly
 s

ee
 t

h
e 

A
tt

ic
u

s 
H

o
te

l, 
sh

o
w

n
 a

t 
le

ft
 a

n
d

 lo
ca

te
d

 in
 

D
o

w
n

to
w

n
 M

cM
in

n
vi

lle
, a

s 
th

e 
m

o
st

 c
o

m
p

at
ib

le
. A

b
o

u
t 

4
5%

 o
f r

es
p

o
n

d
en

ts
 s

ee
 a

 r
an

g
e 

o
f d

iff
er

en
t 

d
es

ig
n

 s
ty

le
s 

an
d

 m
at

er
ia

ls
 a

s 
“c

o
m

p
at

ib
le

,” 
in

cl
u

d
in

g
 s

o
m

e 
“m

o
d

er
n

” 
d

es
ig

n
 (i

m
ag

e 
2)

 a
n

d
 h

ig
h

-q
u

al
it

y 
w

o
o

d
  (

2 
an

d
 4

).

83

34
25

23
7

52

48
58

59

29

73
%

45
%

45
%

45
%

20
%

Ve
ry

 c
om

pa
tib

le
So

m
ew

ha
t c

om
pa

tib
le

%

1
2

3
4

5
U

rb
an

 R
en

ew
al

 A
ge

nc
y 

M
on

da
y,

 N
ov

em
be

r 4
, 2

02
4 

Pa
ge

 3
2 

of
 1

36



14

7
9

1 
M

A
IN

 S
T

.
C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
 S

U
R

V
E

Y
 S

U
M

M
A

R
Y

O
ct

o
b

er
 3

0
, 2

0
24

LR
S 

A
rc

h
it

ec
tu

re
E

th
o

s 
H

o
sp

it
al

it
y 

U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 3

3 
of

 1
36



79
1 

M
ai

n 
St

re
et

H
ot

el
 a

nd
 H

ou
si

ng
 M

ar
ke

t A
na

ly
si

s
O

ct
ob

er
 2

4,
 2

02
4

Fo
ru

m
 P

la
ce

m
ak

in
g

LR
S 

Ar
ch

ite
ct

ur
e

Et
ho

s 
H

os
pi

ta
lit

y 
PB

S 
En

gi
ne

er
in

g

D
R

A
FT

U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 3

4 
of

 1
36



2
79

1 
M

ai
n 

St
re

et
: M

ar
ke

t A
na

ly
si

s 
| D

RA
FT

C
on

te
nt

s
•

In
tr

od
uc

tio
n 

an
d 

Ex
ec

ut
iv

e 
Su

m
m

ar
y

•
H

ot
el

 M
ar

ke
t A

na
ly

si
s

•
St

re
ng

th
s 

•
C

ha
lle

ng
es

•
H

ou
si

ng
 M

ar
ke

t A
na

ly
si

s

•
St

re
ng

th
s 

•
C

ha
lle

ng
es

•
C

on
cl

us
io

ns
 a

nd
 R

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

ns
 

U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 3

5 
of

 1
36



Ex
ec

ut
iv

e 
S

um
m

ar
y

U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 3

6 
of

 1
36



4
79

1 
M

ai
n 

St
re

et
: M

ar
ke

t A
na

ly
si

s 
| D

RA
FT

O
pt

io
n 

1A
H

ot
el

4 
st

or
ie

s

1B
H

ot
el

5 
st

or
ie

s

2A
H

ou
si

ng
4 

st
or

ie
s

2B
H

ou
si

ng
4 

st
or

ie
s

H
ot

el
 R

oo
m

s
47

63
47

63
or

 A
pa

rt
m

en
t U

ni
ts

Pa
rk

in
g 

St
al

ls
18

18
27

27
Pa

rk
in

g 
Ra

tio
: S

ta
lls

/U
ni

t
0.

4
0.

3
0.

6
0.

4

H
ot

el
 R

o o
m

s
or

 A
pa

rt
m

en
t U

ni
ts

Pa
rk

in
g 

St
al

ls
Pa

rk
in

g 
Ra

tio
(S

ta
lls

/U
ni

t)

Si
te

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t O
pt

io
ns

Th
ro

ug
ho

ut
 th

e 
su

m
m

er
 o

f 2
02

4,
 th

e 
te

am
’s

 a
na

ly
si

s 
fo

cu
se

d 
on

 fo
ur

 d
iff

er
en

t d
es

ig
n 

op
tio

ns
, s

ho
w

n 
be

lo
w

. 
As

 o
f O

ct
ob

er
 2

02
4,

 s
ev

er
al

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 o

pt
io

ns
 a

re
 b

ei
ng

 s
tu

di
ed

 (n
ot

 s
ho

w
n 

be
lo

w
).

U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 3

7 
of

 1
36



5
79

1 
M

ai
n 

St
re

et
: M

ar
ke

t A
na

ly
si

s 
| D

RA
FT

Bu
ild

in
g 

a 
m

ix
ed

-u
se

 h
ot

el
 o

n 
th

e 
si

te
 w

ill
 b

e 
ch

al
le

ng
in

g,
 b

ut
 it

 
is

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
“m

ar
gi

n 
of

 e
ffo

rt
.”

 

Ke
y 

St
re

ng
th

s
•

D
al

la
s’

 c
om

m
un

ity
 v

is
io

n
•

W
or

ld
w

id
e 

to
ur

is
m

 in
te

re
st

 in
 th

e 
W

ill
am

et
te

 V
al

le
y

•
D

ev
el

op
er

 in
te

re
st

 in
 h

ot
el

s 
in

 W
ill

am
et

te
 V

al
le

y 
•

M
et

ric
s 

ac
hi

ev
ed

 a
nd

 ta
rg

et
ed

 (A
D

R,
 O

cc
up

an
cy

, 
an

d 
Re

vP
AR

) a
t o

th
er

 b
ou

tiq
ue

 h
ot

el
s,

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
ly

 
th

e 
At

tic
us

 a
nd

 p
la

nn
ed

 D
ow

nt
ow

n 
D

ay
to

n 
ho

te
l

•
U

ni
qu

e 
w

in
er

ie
s,

 h
is

to
ric

 d
ow

nt
ow

n,
 B

as
ke

tt
 S

lo
ug

h,
 

an
d 

ot
he

r a
m

en
iti

es
 in

 D
al

la
s 

an
d 

Po
lk

 C
ou

nt
y

Ke
y 

ch
al

le
ng

es
•

H
ig

h 
in

te
re

st
 ra

te
s 

an
d 

st
rin

ge
nt

 le
nd

in
g 

st
an

da
rd

s 
•

Lo
w

 o
cc

up
an

cy
 a

t I
nd

ep
en

de
nc

e 
H

ot
el

, p
ar

tic
ul

ar
ly

 
fo

r w
ee

kl
y/

bu
si

ne
ss

 tr
av

el
, o

cc
up

an
cy

 d
ec

re
as

ed
 

fu
rt

he
r f

ol
lo

w
in

g 
W

O
U

 e
nr

ol
lm

en
t d

ec
lin

es
.

•
D

ow
nt

ow
n 

D
al

la
s 

is
 n

ot
 y

et
 a

 to
ur

is
t d

es
tin

at
io

n

Th
e 

ci
ty

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 a

bl
e 

to
 a

tt
ra

ct
 a

 q
ua

lit
y 

ho
te

l 
de

ve
lo

pe
r t

o 
th

e 
si

te
, b

ut
 s

ta
ff 

an
d 

co
ns

ul
ta

nt
 e

ffo
rt

, 
in

ve
st

m
en

ts
, a

nd
 p

at
ie

nc
e 

m
ay

 b
e 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y.

U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 3

8 
of

 1
36



6
79

1 
M

ai
n 

St
re

et
: M

ar
ke

t A
na

ly
si

s 
| D

RA
FT

Bu
ild

in
g 

m
ix

ed
-u

se
 h

ou
si

ng
 o

n 
th

e 
si

te
 w

ill
 b

e 
ch

al
le

ng
in

g,
 b

ut
 it

 
is

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
“m

ar
gi

n 
of

 e
ffo

rt
.”

 

Ke
y 

St
re

ng
th

s
•

D
al

la
s 

is
 g

ro
w

in
g 

ra
pi

dl
y,

 a
nd

 m
an

y 
of

 th
e 

ne
w

 re
si

de
nt

s 
ar

e 
m

id
dl

e 
an

d 
up

pe
r-

in
co

m
e 

ho
us

eh
ol

ds
.

•
D

al
la

s 
ha

s 
hi

gh
 le

ve
ls

 o
f w

hi
te

 c
ol

la
r e

m
pl

oy
m

en
t, 

65
+ 

ag
ed

 
ho

us
eh

ol
ds

, a
nd

 1
 a

nd
 2

 p
er

so
n 

ho
us

eh
ol

ds
.

•
Re

ce
nt

 d
ow

nt
ow

n,
 m

ix
ed

-u
se

 h
ou

si
ng

 p
ro

je
ct

s 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 in

 In
de

pe
nd

en
ce

, M
on

m
ou

th
, C

an
by

, a
nd

 o
th

er
 

sm
al

l- 
an

d 
m

id
-s

iz
e 

ci
tie

s 
in

 O
re

go
n.

Ke
y 

C
ha

lle
ng

es
•

M
ix

ed
-u

se
, i

nf
ill

, p
od

iu
m

 p
ro

je
ct

s 
co

st
 m

or
e 

an
d 

th
er

ef
or

e 
re

qu
ire

 h
ig

he
r r

en
ts

 in
 o

rd
er

 to
 p

en
ci

l.
•

D
al

la
s’

 c
ur

re
nt

 re
nt

s,
 a

nd
 th

e 
re

nt
s 

at
 re

ce
nt

 h
ou

si
ng

 p
ro

je
ct

s 
in

 In
de

pe
nd

en
ce

, a
re

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
tly

 lo
w

er
 th

an
 d

ev
el

op
er

s 
w

ou
ld

 e
xp

ec
t f

or
 a

 n
ew

 p
ro

je
ct

 a
t 7

91
 M

ai
n 

St
re

et
.

•
D

al
la

s 
ha

s 
re

la
tiv

el
y 

fe
w

 h
ou

se
ho

ld
s 

in
 th

ei
r 2

0s
 a

nd
 3

0s
—

th
e 

pr
im

ar
y 

re
nt

al
 h

ou
si

ng
 a

ge
 g

ro
up

s.
•

M
or

e 
th

an
 7

00
 a

pa
rt

m
en

t u
ni

ts
 a

re
 p

la
nn

ed
 fo

r D
al

la
s 

be
tw

ee
n 

20
24

 a
nd

 2
03

0.
 T

hi
s 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 n

ew
 s

up
pl

y 
co

ul
d 

dr
iv

e 
do

w
n 

re
nt

al
 ra

te
s 

an
d 

in
cr

ea
se

 v
ac

an
ci

es
. 

Th
e 

ci
ty

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 a

bl
e 

to
 a

tt
ra

ct
 a

 q
ua

lit
y 

m
ix

ed
-u

se
 h

ou
si

ng
 

de
ve

lo
pe

r t
o 

th
e 

si
te

, b
ut

 s
ta

ff 
an

d 
co

ns
ul

ta
nt

 e
ffo

rt
, 

ad
di

tio
na

l p
ub

lic
 in

ve
st

m
en

ts
, a

nd
 p

at
ie

nc
e 

m
ay

 b
e 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y.

U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 3

9 
of

 1
36



7
79

1 
M

ai
n 

St
re

et
: M

ar
ke

t A
na

ly
si

s 
| D

RA
FT

•
Bu

ild
in

g 
ei

th
er

 m
ix

ed
-u

se
 h

ou
si

ng
 o

r a
 h

ot
el

 o
n 

th
e 

si
te

 w
ill

 
be

 c
ha

lle
ng

in
g.

 H
ot

el
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t w

ill
 p

ro
ba

bl
y 

be
 

so
m

ew
ha

t m
or

e 
di

ffi
cu

lt.
•

N
on

et
he

le
ss

, t
he

 C
ity

 s
ho

ul
d 

ag
gr

es
si

ve
ly

 m
ar

ke
t t

he
 s

ite
 to

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t t
ea

m
s 

vi
a 

in
 2

02
5,

 v
ia

 d
ire

ct
 o

ut
re

ac
h 

an
d 

a 
Re

qu
es

t f
or

 Q
ua

lif
ic

at
io

ns
 (R

FQ
). 

An
 R

FQ
 a

nd
 m

ar
ke

tin
g 

ar
e 

a 
pa

rt
 o

f t
he

 c
on

su
lta

nt
 te

am
’s

 c
ur

re
nt

 s
co

pe
 o

f w
or

k.
 T

he
 C

ity
 

sh
ou

ld
 s

ee
k 

pr
op

os
al

s 
fr

om
 d

ev
el

op
er

s 
of

 m
ix

ed
-u

se
 h

ot
el

 
an

d 
ho

us
in

g 
pr

oj
ec

ts
, a

nd
 p

ot
en

tia
lly

 d
ev

el
op

er
s 

w
ith

 o
th

er
 

co
nc

ep
ts

 fo
r t

he
 s

ite
 s

uc
h 

as
 a

 “
w

in
e 

vi
lla

ge
”.

 
•

Th
e 

id
ea

l d
ev

el
op

m
en

t t
ea

m
 m

ay
 n

ee
d 

to
 in

cl
ud

e 
on

e 
or

 
m

or
e 

w
el

l-c
ap

ita
liz

ed
 a

nd
/o

r l
oc

al
 e

qu
ity

 in
ve

st
or

s 
w

ith
 

pa
tie

nt
 c

ap
ita

l, 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

th
e 

m
od

el
 in

 D
ay

to
n 

an
d 

ot
he

r 
lo

ca
tio

ns
.

•
A 

fu
tu

re
 h

ot
el

 a
t 7

91
 M

ai
n 

St
re

et
 s

ho
ul

d 
ce

le
br

at
e 

th
e 

be
st

 o
f 

D
al

la
s,

 P
ol

k 
C

ou
nt

y,
 a

nd
 W

ill
am

et
te

 V
al

le
y,

 b
y 

co
ns

id
er

in
g 

ho
w

 to
 in

co
rp

or
at

e 
th

em
es

 s
uc

h 
as

 th
e 

un
iq

ue
 C

ou
rt

ho
us

e 
Sq

ua
re

, c
ro

ss
 la

m
in

at
ed

 ti
m

be
r,

 b
ird

in
g 

an
d 

bu
tt

er
fli

es
, 

qu
ilt

in
g,

 C
yn

th
ia

na
 (a

n 
or

ig
in

al
 n

am
e 

of
 D

al
la

s)
 o

r Z
ep

hy
ria

 
(t

he
 w

es
te

rn
 w

in
d,

 e
.g

., 
of

 th
e 

H
ig

hw
ay

 2
2/

Va
n 

D
uz

er
 w

in
e 

co
rr

id
or

).

O
ur

 c
on

cl
us

io
ns

 a
nd

 re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

 
fo

r t
he

 s
ite

 a
nd

 d
ow

nt
ow

n 
D

al
la

s 
in

cl
ud

e:

•
Th

e 
C

ity
 s

ho
ul

d 
ta

ke
 a

 b
ig

-p
ic

tu
re

 a
nd

 lo
ng

-r
un

 v
ie

w
 o

f i
ts

 
re

tu
rn

 o
n 

in
ve

st
m

en
t. 

 
•

Ad
di

tio
na

l c
ity

 in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 v
is

-à
-v

is
 th

e 
si

te
 m

ay
 b

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
in

 th
e 

ne
ar

 te
rm

 (s
ee

 “
in

ce
nt

iv
es

” 
be

lo
w

), 
bu

t o
ve

r t
he

 lo
ng

 
te

rm
, t

he
 C

ity
 c

an
 g

et
 a

 la
rg

e 
re

tu
rn

 o
n 

its
 in

ve
st

m
en

ts
, v

ia
 

fu
tu

re
 lo

dg
in

g 
an

d 
pr

op
er

ty
 ta

xe
s,

 o
th

er
 ta

xe
s 

an
d 

fe
es

, 
to

ur
is

t a
nd

/o
r r

es
id

en
t s

pe
nd

in
g,

 d
ow

nt
ow

n 
re

vi
ta

liz
at

io
n,

 
et

c.
 

•
Th

e 
C

ity
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 p
re

pa
re

d 
to

 u
se

 v
ar

io
us

 in
ce

nt
iv

es
 a

nd
 

to
ol

s 
in

 o
rd

er
 to

 a
tt

ra
ct

 d
ev

el
op

er
s 

an
d 

m
ak

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
fe

as
ib

le
. 

•
Th

e 
C

ity
 s

ho
ul

d 
co

m
bi

ne
 re

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f 7
91

 M
ai

n 
St

re
et

 
w

ith
 o

th
er

 e
ffo

rt
s 

th
at

 c
an

 e
nc

ou
ra

ge
 o

ng
oi

ng
 re

vi
ta

liz
at

io
n 

an
d 

re
in

ve
st

m
en

t t
hr

ou
gh

ou
t D

ow
nt

ow
n 

D
al

la
s,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
co

nt
in

ui
ng

 to
 a

dp
at

iv
el

y 
re

us
e 

hi
st

or
ic

 b
ui

ld
in

gs
, a

tt
ra

ct
in

g 
de

si
ra

bl
e 

bu
si

ne
ss

es
 to

 d
ow

nt
ow

n,
 m

ak
in

g 
do

w
nt

ow
n 

m
or

e 
fa

m
ily

-f
rie

nd
ly

, a
nd

 e
va

lu
at

in
g 

ho
w

 u
se

 o
f C

ou
rt

ho
us

e 
Sq

ua
re

 c
an

 b
e 

m
ax

im
iz

ed
.

U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 4

0 
of

 1
36



8
79

1 
M

ai
n 

St
re

et
: M

ar
ke

t A
na

ly
si

s 
| D

RA
FT

M
et
ho

do
lo
gy

•
Te

am

•
Br

ia
n 

Va
nn

em
an

, F
or

um
 P

la
ce

m
ak

in
g

•
Er

ic
 A

eb
i, 

Et
ho

s 
H

os
pi

ta
lit

y 

•
Bo

b 
Bo

ile
au

, L
RS

 A
rc

hi
te

ct
ur

e

•
90

+ 
ye

ar
s 

of
 e

xp
er

ie
nc

e,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

bu
ilt

 h
ot

el
s,

 h
ou

si
ng

, a
nd

 o
th

er
 p

ro
je

ct
s

•
Ac

tiv
e 

in
 P

ac
ifi

c 
N

or
th

w
es

t r
ea

l e
st

at
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t a

nd
 u

rb
an

 p
la

nn
in

g 
in

du
st

rie
s,

 
$5

00
+ 

m
ill

io
n 

in
 c

om
pl

et
ed

 p
ub

lic
-p

riv
at

e 
pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

ps
 

•
O

ut
re

ac
h 

/ E
ng

ag
em

en
t 

•
In

te
rv

ie
w

s 
w

ith
 lo

ca
l s

ta
ke

ho
ld

er
s

•
O

nl
in

e 
C

om
m

un
ity

 S
ur

ve
y 

– 
18

0 
re

sp
on

de
nt

s

•
Pu

bl
ic

 O
pe

n 
H

ou
se

, S
ep

te
m

be
r 4

•
In

te
rv

ie
w

s 
w

ith
 h

ot
el

 a
nd

 h
ou

si
ng

 d
ev

el
op

er
s

•
D

at
a 

so
ur

ce
s

•
U

S 
C

en
su

s,
 T

ra
ve

l O
re

go
n,

 S
TR

, C
os

ta
r,

 S
oc

ia
l E

xp
lo

re
r,

 o
th

er

•
To

ur
s 

of
 p

ro
je

ct
s 

in
 M

on
m

ou
th

, I
nd

ep
en

de
nc

e,
 M

cM
in

nv
ill

e,
 e

ls
ew

he
re

 

U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 4

1 
of

 1
36



H
ot

el
 M

ar
ke

t A
na

ly
si

s

U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 4

2 
of

 1
36



S
tr

en
gt

hs
O

f t
he

 M
ar

ke
t a

nd
 S

ite
 

Fo
r a

 F
ut

ur
e 

H
ot

el
 P

ro
je

ct
 

U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 4

3 
of

 1
36



11
79

1 
M

ai
n 

St
re

et
: M

ar
ke

t A
na

ly
si

s 
| D

RA
FT

70

38

21

51

H
ot

el

H
ou

si
ng

O
ffi

ce
s

O
th

erW
hi

ch
 o

f t
he

se
 u

se
s 

w
ou

ld
 y

ou
 p

re
fe

r t
o 

se
e 

on
 

th
e 

up
pe

r s
to

rie
s 

of
 a

 fu
tu

re
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

on
 7

91
 M

ai
n 

St
re

et
?

A 
ho

te
l a

t t
he

 s
ite

 is
 

th
e 

to
p 

ch
oi

ce
 o

f t
he

 
D

al
la

s 
co

m
m

un
ity

.

So
ur

ce
: C

ity
 o

f D
al

la
s 

on
lin

e 
su

rv
ey

, S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

02
4.

U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 4

4 
of

 1
36



12
79

1 
M

ai
n 

St
re

et
: M

ar
ke

t A
na

ly
si

s 
| D

RA
FT

C
om

pa
re

d 
to

 o
th

er
 u

se
s 

on
 th

e 
si

te
, 

a 
ho

te
l h

as
 s

ev
er

al
 d

is
tin

ct
 a

dv
an

ta
ge

s.

U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 4

5 
of

 1
36



13
79

1 
M

ai
n 

St
re

et
: M

ar
ke

t A
na

ly
si

s 
| D

RA
FT

Tr
av

el
er

s 
fr

om
 a

ro
un

d 
th

e 
co

un
tr

y 
an

d 
ar

ou
nd

 th
e 

w
or

ld
 a

re
 

in
cr

ea
si

ng
ly

 tr
av

el
in

g 
to

 th
e 

W
ill

am
et

te
 V

al
le

y 
to

 ta
st

e 
w

in
e 

an
d 

ha
ve

 a
n 

ex
ce

pt
io

na
l e

xp
er

ie
nc

e.
  

U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 4

6 
of

 1
36



14
79

1 
M

ai
n 

St
re

et
: M

ar
ke

t A
na

ly
si

s 
| D

RA
FT

Tr
av

el
er

s 
fr

om
 a

ro
un

d 
th

e 
co

un
tr

y 
an

d 
ar

ou
nd

 th
e 

w
or

ld
 a

re
 

in
cr

ea
si

ng
ly

 tr
av

el
in

g 
to

 th
e 

W
ill

am
et

te
 V

al
le

y.
 

V
is

it
or

 S
pe

nd
in

g 
on

 A
cc

om
m

od
at

io
ns

, W
ill

am
et

te
 V

al
le

y 
R

eg
io

n 

So
ur

ce
: T

ra
ve

l O
re

go
n,

 h
tt

ps
:/

/w
w

w
.tr

av
el

st
at

s.
co

m
/d

as
hb

oa
rd

/o
re

go
n 

U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 4

7 
of

 1
36

https://www.travelstats.com/dashboard/oregon


15
79

1 
M

ai
n 

St
re

et
: M

ar
ke

t A
na

ly
si

s 
| D

RA
FT

0

10
0

20
0

30
0

40
0

50
0

60
0

70
0

20
00

20
05

20
10

20
15

20
20

20
25

20
30

N
um

be
r o

f H
ot

el
 R

oo
m

s 
Bu

ilt
 b

y 
Ye

ar
 

in
 P

ol
k,

 B
en

to
n,

 M
ar

io
n,

 a
nd

 Y
am

hi
ll 

C
ou

nt
ie

s,
 2

00
0 

to
 2

03
0

A 
ho

te
l d

ev
el

op
m

en
t b

oo
m

 is
 u

nd
er

w
ay

 
in

 th
e 

W
ill

am
et

te
 V

al
le

y,
 in

 re
sp

on
se

 to
 in

cr
ea

se
d 

in
te

re
st

 
in

 v
is

iti
ng

 O
re

go
n’

s 
w

in
e 

co
un

tr
y.

 

So
ur

ce
: C

oS
ta

r.

U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 4

8 
of

 1
36



16
79

1 
M

ai
n 

St
re

et
: M

ar
ke

t A
na

ly
si

s 
| D

RA
FT

D
es

pi
te

 a
ll 

th
e 

ho
te

l 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t t
ha

t h
as

 ta
ke

n 
pl

ac
e 

ov
er

 th
e 

pa
st

 d
ec

ad
e,

 
no

 n
ew

 h
ot

el
s 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
ad

de
d 

be
tw

ee
n 

M
cM

in
nv

ill
e 

an
d 

In
de

pe
nd

en
ce

, i
.e

., 
in

 
So

ut
he

rn
 Y

am
hi

ll 
an

d 
N

or
th

er
n 

Po
lk

 C
ou

nt
ie

s.
 

So
ur

ce
: C

oS
ta

r.

H
ot

el
s 

Bu
ilt

 2
01

4 
to

 P
re

se
nt

, 
In

cl
ud

in
g 

U
nd

er
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

an
d 

Pl
an

ne
d 

Po
lk

, B
en

to
n,

 M
ar

io
n,

 a
nd

 Y
am

hi
ll 

C
ou

nt
ie

s

U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 4

9 
of

 1
36



17
79

1 
M

ai
n 

St
re

et
: M

ar
ke

t A
na

ly
si

s 
| D

RA
FT

Th
er

e 
ar

e 
nu

m
er

ou
s 

un
iq

ue
, 

in
de

pe
nd

en
t h

ot
el

s 
lo

ca
te

d 
in

 
O

re
go

n 
th

at
 o

ffe
r s

pe
ci

al
 lo

ca
l 

ex
pe

rie
nc

es
 a

nd
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

tly
 

ou
tp

er
fo

rm
 “

co
m

m
od

ity
” 

fr
an

ch
is

e 
ho

te
ls

. 
At

tic
us

 ro
om

 ra
te

s 
ar

e 
$4

40
/n

ig
ht

fo
r k

in
g 

ro
om

s 
in

 N
ov

em
be

r 2
02

4.

Sm
al

l-C
ity

 B
ou

tiq
ue

 H
ot

el
 C

om
p 

Se
t 

▪
At

tic
us

 H
ot

el
, M

cM
in

nv
ill

e

▪
Th

e 
In

de
pe

nd
en

ce
, A

 T
ra

ce
 H

ot
el

▪
H

ol
m

an
 R

iv
er

fr
on

t P
ar

k 
H

ot
el

 S
al

em
, 

Ta
pe

st
ry

 C
ol

le
ct

io
n 

by
 H

ilt
on

▪
H

ea
dl

an
ds

 C
oa

st
al

 L
od

ge
 &

 S
pa

, 
Pa

ci
fic

 C
ity

▪
Th

e 
O

xf
or

d 
H

ot
el

, B
en

d

▪
C

an
ne

ry
 P

ie
r H

ot
el

 &
 S

pa
, A

st
or

ia
 

▪
Th

e 
O

ce
an

 L
od

ge
 C

an
no

n 
Be

ac
h

U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 5

0 
of

 1
36



18
79

1 
M

ai
n 

St
re

et
: M

ar
ke

t A
na

ly
si

s 
| D

RA
FT

A 
ne

w
, l

ux
ur

y 
ho

te
l i

s 
pl

an
ne

d 
fo

r D
ow

nt
ow

n 
D

ay
to

n,
 O

re
go

n,
 w

ith
 

ro
om

 ra
te

s 
(A

D
R)

 a
ro

un
d 

$3
00

 p
er

 n
ig

ht
.

Th
is

 p
la

nn
ed

 h
ot

el
 il

lu
st

ra
te

s 
se

ve
ra

l i
m

po
rt

an
t p

oi
nt

s 
ab

ou
t 

ho
te

l d
ev

el
op

m
en

t i
n 

th
e 

W
ill

am
et

te
 V

al
le

y.

Fi
rs

t, 
th

er
e 

is
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t d
ev

el
op

er
 in

te
re

st
 a

t a
 ra

ng
e 

of
 h

ot
el

 
cl

as
se

s,
 fr

om
 m

id
sc

al
e 

to
 lu

xu
ry

. D
ev

el
op

er
s 

ap
pe

ar
 w

ill
in

g 
to

 m
ak

e 
a 

be
t o

n 
hi

st
or

ic
 d

ow
nt

ow
n 

lo
ca

tio
ns

 th
at

 a
re

 n
ot

 y
et

 
es

ta
bl

is
he

d 
as

 to
ur

is
t d

es
tin

at
io

ns
. D

ay
to

n 
is

 n
ot

 th
at

 m
uc

h 
cl

os
er

 to
 P

or
tla

nd
 (5

5 
vs

 7
0 

m
in

ut
es

 to
 D

al
la

s)
, a

nd
 

D
ow

nt
ow

n 
D

ay
to

n 
do

es
 n

ot
 h

av
e 

th
e 

hi
st

or
ic

 c
ha

ra
ct

er
 o

f 
D

al
la

s.

H
ow

ev
er

, t
hi

s 
ho

te
l b

en
ef

its
 fr

om
 th

e 
un

w
av

er
in

g 
su

pp
or

t—
fin

an
ci

al
 a

nd
 o

th
er

w
is

e—
of

 B
ill

 S
to

lle
r,

 a
 w

ea
lth

y 
en

tr
ep

re
ne

ur
 a

nd
 w

in
em

ak
er

 b
as

ed
 ju

st
 m

in
ut

es
 fr

om
 

do
w

nt
ow

n 
D

ay
to

n.
 

So
ur

ce
: I

nt
er

vi
ew

s;
 

ht
tp

s:
//

w
w

w
.s

po
ke

sm
an

.c
om

/s
to

rie
s/

20
20

/m
ay

/0
4/

gr
ea

t-
no

rt
hw

es
t-

w
in

e-
or

eg
on

-v
in

tn
er

-s
to

lle
r-

re
sc

ue
/; 

ht
tp

s:
//

w
w

w
.h

ug
hd

ev
.c

om
/p

ro
je

ct
s 

Ab
ov

e:
 H

ot
el

 s
ite

 a
t T

hi
rd

 a
nd

 F
er

ry
 S

tr
ee

ts
.

Be
lo

w
: P

la
nn

ed
 h

ot
el

.

U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 5

1 
of

 1
36

https://www.spokesman.com/stories/2020/may/04/great-northwest-wine-oregon-vintner-stoller-rescue/
https://www.spokesman.com/stories/2020/may/04/great-northwest-wine-oregon-vintner-stoller-rescue/
https://www.hughdev.com/projects


19
79

1 
M

ai
n 

St
re

et
: M

ar
ke

t A
na

ly
si

s 
| D

RA
FT

Ro
om

 ra
te

s 
(A

D
R)

 h
av

e 
gr

ow
n 

co
ns

is
te

nt
ly

 fo
r t

he
 

bo
ut

iq
ue

 h
ot

el
 c

om
p 

se
t. 

In
 2

02
1,

 2
02

2,
 a

nd
 2

02
3,

 A
D

Rs
 

gr
ew

 b
y 

m
or

e 
th

an
 1

0%
 a

nn
ua

lly
. 

So
ur

ce
: C

oS
ta

r

O
cc

up
an

cy
 a

nd
 A

D
R

 C
ha

ng
e 

fo
r S

m
al

l C
it

y 
B

ou
ti

qu
e 

H
ot

el
 C

om
p 

Se
t

Ro
om

 R
at

es
 (A

D
R)

O
cc

up
an

cy

U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 5

2 
of

 1
36



2
0

79
1 

M
ai

n 
St

re
et

: M
ar

ke
t A

na
ly

si
s 

| D
RA

FT

Re
ve

nu
e 

pe
r a

va
ila

bl
e 

ro
om

 (R
ev

PA
R)

 h
as

 in
cr

ea
se

d 
in

 th
e 

bo
ut

iq
ue

 h
ot

el
 c

om
p 

se
t, 

es
pe

ci
al

ly
 fo

r t
he

 h
ot

el
s 

in
 th

e 
lu

xu
ry

 c
at

eg
or

y.
 

R
ev

en
ue

 p
er

 A
va

ila
bl

e 
R

oo
m

 b
y 

C
la

ss
 fo

r S
m

al
l C

it
y 

B
ou

ti
qu

e 
H

ot
el

 C
om

p 
Se

t

U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 5

3 
of

 1
36



2
1

79
1 

M
ai

n 
St

re
et

: M
ar

ke
t A

na
ly

si
s 

| D
RA

FT

U
si

ng
 th

e 
ke

y 
m

et
ric

s 
fo

r t
he

 S
m

al
l C

ity
 B

ou
tiq

ue
 

H
ot

el
 C

om
p 

Se
t g

en
er

at
es

 a
 re

as
on

ab
le

 R
O

I f
or

 
th

e 
D

al
la

s 
si

te
. 

U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 5

4 
of

 1
36



2
2

79
1 

M
ai

n 
St

re
et

: M
ar

ke
t A

na
ly

si
s 

| D
RA

FT

Bo
ut

iq
ue

 H
ot

el
s 

ar
e 

po
pu

la
r a

m
on

g 
ho

te
l a

nd
 

ho
sp

ita
lit

y 
m

an
ag

er
s 

an
d 

in
ve

st
or

s 
w

or
ld

w
id

e.
 

•
Pe

rs
on

al
iz

ed
 S

er
vi

ce
 

•
Au

th
en

tic
 E

xp
er

ie
nc

e

•
U

ni
qu

e 
Id

en
tit

y 

•
Lo

ca
l I

nt
eg

ra
tio

n

U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 5

5 
of

 1
36



2
3

79
1 

M
ai

n 
St

re
et

: M
ar

ke
t A

na
ly

si
s 

| D
RA

FT

Th
er

e 
ar

e 
m

ul
tip

le
 h

ot
el

s 
lo

ca
te

d 
in

 th
e 

Sa
le

m
 a

re
a 

th
at

 a
re

 
ta

rg
et

in
g 

w
in

e 
to

ur
is

ts
, a

lo
ng

 w
ith

 b
us

in
es

s 
an

d 
fa

m
ily

 
tr

av
el

. 

Sa
le

m
 R

eg
io

n 
C

om
p 

Se
t:

▪
Be

st
 W

es
te

rn
 P

lu
s 

M
ill

 C
re

ek
 In

n

▪
Re

si
de

nc
e 

In
n 

Sa
le

m

▪
H

am
pt

on
 b

y 
H

ilt
on

 In
n 

&
 S

ui
te

s 
Sa

le
m

▪
H

ol
m

an
 R

iv
er

fr
on

t P
ar

k 
H

ot
el

 
Sa

le
m

, T
ap

es
tr

y 
C

ol
le

ct
io

n

▪
G

ra
nd

 

U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 5

6 
of

 1
36



2
4

79
1 

M
ai

n 
St

re
et

: M
ar

ke
t A

na
ly

si
s 

| D
RA

FT

Bo
ut

iq
ue

 H
ot

el
s 

ar
e 

po
pu

la
r a

m
on

g 
ho

te
l a

nd
 h

os
pi

ta
lit

y 
m

an
ag

er
s 

an
d 

in
ve

st
or

s 
w

or
ld

w
id

e.
 

Sa
le

m
 R

eg
io

n 
C

om
p 

Se
t:

▪
Be

st
 W

es
te

rn
 P

lu
s 

M
ill

 C
re

ek
 In

n

▪
Re

si
de

nc
e 

In
n 

Sa
le

m

▪
H

am
pt

on
 b

y 
H

ilt
on

 In
n 

&
 S

ui
te

s 
Sa

le
m

▪
H

ol
m

an
 R

iv
er

fr
on

t P
ar

k 
H

ot
el

 
Sa

le
m

, T
ap

es
tr

y 
C

ol
le

ct
io

n

▪
G

ra
nd

 

U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 5

7 
of

 1
36



2
5

79
1 

M
ai

n 
St

re
et

: M
ar

ke
t A

na
ly

si
s 

| D
RA

FT

In
 2

02
3,

 S
al

em
 a

irp
or

t b
eg

an
 o

ffe
rin

g 
co

m
m

er
ci

al
 fl

ig
ht

s 
to

 
th

e 
Sa

n 
Fr

an
ci

sc
o,

 L
os

 A
ng

el
es

, a
nd

 L
as

 V
eg

as
 m

et
ro

 a
re

as
. 

D
al

la
s 

is
 n

ow
 a

cc
es

si
bl

e 
vi

a 
th

e 
Po

rt
la

nd
, S

al
em

, a
nd

 E
ug

en
e 

ai
rp

or
ts

, I
-5

, a
nd

 O
R 

hi
gh

w
ay

 2
2.

 

U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 5

8 
of

 1
36



2
6

79
1 

M
ai

n 
St

re
et

: M
ar

ke
t A

na
ly

si
s 

| D
RA

FT

D
al

la
s 

is
 ju

st
 o

ve
r 1

 h
ou

r 
fr

om
 P

or
tla

nd
; a

bo
ut

 2
0 

m
in

ut
es

 fr
om

 S
al

em
; a

nd
 in

 
an

 e
xc

el
le

nt
 p

os
iti

on
 to

 
at

tr
ac

t t
ra

ve
le

rs
 fr

om
 

C
al

ifo
rn

ia
ns

 d
riv

in
g 

no
rt

h;
 

an
d 

fr
om

 re
si

de
nt

s 
of

 B
en

d 
an

d 
C

en
tr

al
 O

re
go

n 
dr

iv
in

g 
to

 th
e 

co
as

t. 
D

al
la

s 
is

 lo
ca

te
d 

w
ith

in
 6

0 
m

ile
s 

of
 a

 
m

aj
or

ity
 o

f t
he

 S
ta

te
 o

f O
re

go
n’

s 
po

pu
la

tio
n,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
th

e 
Po

rt
la

nd
 a

nd
 

Sa
le

m
 m

et
ro

 re
gi

on
s.

 E
ug

en
e,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
EU

G
 A

irp
or

t, 
is

 ju
st

 o
ve

r 6
0 

m
ile

s 
aw

ay
. 

Po
pu

la
ti

on
 D

en
si

ty
 o

f A
re

as
 

lo
ca

te
d 

w
it

hi
n 

60
 m

ile
s 

of
 D

al
la

s

U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 5

9 
of

 1
36



2
7

79
1 

M
ai

n 
St

re
et

: M
ar

ke
t A

na
ly

si
s 

| D
RA

FT

D
al

la
s 

is
 th

e 
cl

os
es

t c
ity

 to
 th

e 
w

in
er

ie
s 

of
 th

e 
Va

n 
D

uz
er

 C
or

rid
or

 A
VA

, a
nd

 th
er

ef
or

e 
a 

ho
te

l a
nd

 
re

st
au

ra
nt

 in
 D

al
la

s 
ca

n 
fe

at
ur

e 
th

e 
be

st
 o

f t
hi

s 
w

in
e 

gr
ow

in
g 

ar
ea

.

U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 6

0 
of

 1
36



2
8

79
1 

M
ai

n 
St

re
et

: M
ar

ke
t A

na
ly

si
s 

| D
RA

FT

D
al

la
s 

is
 ju

st
 a

 fe
w

 m
ile

s 
fr

om
 th

e 
M

ou
nt

 P
is

ga
h-

Po
lk

 
C

ou
nt

y 
AV

A,
 fo

rm
ed

 in
 2

02
2.

 Th
e 

M
ou

nt
 P

is
ga

h 
AV

A 
in

cl
ud

es
 

th
re

e 
w

in
er

ie
s:

 ll
ah

e,
 O

pe
n 

C
la

im
 V

in
ey

ar
ds

, a
nd

 A
m

el
ie

 R
ob

er
t E

st
at

e.

U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 6

1 
of

 1
36



2
9

79
1 

M
ai

n 
St

re
et

: M
ar

ke
t A

na
ly

si
s 

| D
RA

FT

So
m

e 
of

 th
e 

ot
he

r m
aj

or
 to

ur
is

t 
at

tr
ac

tio
ns

 in
 P

ol
k 

C
ou

nt
y—

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
ly

 b
ird

- a
nd

 b
ut

te
rf

ly
-

w
at

ch
in

g 
at

 B
as

ke
tt

 S
lo

ug
h 

N
at

io
na

l 
W

ild
lif

e 
Re

fu
ge

—
ap

pe
al

 to
 th

e 
sa

m
e 

de
m

og
ra

ph
ic

 g
ro

up
s 

th
at

 e
nj

oy
 w

in
e 

ta
st

in
g—

ol
de

r,
 h

ig
he

r i
nc

om
e,

 m
or

e 
hi

gh
ly

 e
du

ca
te

d 
tr

av
el

er
s.

 

To
p 

A
ct

iv
it

ie
s 

of
 

V
is

it
or

s 
to

 th
e 

W
ill

am
et

te
 V

al
le

y 

U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 6

2 
of

 1
36



3
0

79
1 

M
ai

n 
St

re
et

: M
ar

ke
t A

na
ly

si
s 

| D
RA

FT

O
re

go
n 

La
nd

 u
se

 la
w

s 
m

ak
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

ut
si

de
 o

f 
ci

tie
s 

di
ffi

cu
lt 

or
 im

po
ss

ib
le

. T
he

re
fo

re
, h

ot
el

ie
rs

 a
re

 
lo

ok
in

g 
fo

r w
el

l-l
oc

at
ed

 s
ite

s 
in

 c
iti

es
. 

U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 6

3 
of

 1
36



3
1

79
1 

M
ai

n 
St

re
et

: M
ar

ke
t A

na
ly

si
s 

| D
RA

FT

D
ow

nt
ow

n 
D

al
la

s 
is

 u
ni

qu
e,

 b
ea

ut
ifu

l, 
an

d 
hi

st
or

ic
. 

U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 6

4 
of

 1
36



3
2

79
1 

M
ai

n 
St

re
et

: M
ar

ke
t A

na
ly

si
s 

| D
RA

FT

D
al

la
s 

ha
s 

tw
o 

lim
ite

d-
se

rv
ic

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
ho

te
ls

, b
ut

 th
ey

 d
o 

no
t s

er
ve

 
tr

av
el

er
s 

se
ek

in
g 

un
iq

ue
 w

in
e,

 fo
od

, o
ut

do
or

s,
 a

nd
 c

ul
tu

ra
l e

xp
er

ie
nc

es
; 

th
ey

 w
ou

ld
 n

ot
 b

e 
di

re
ct

ly
 c

om
pe

tit
iv

e 
w

ith
 a

 n
ew

 h
ot

el
 a

t t
he

 s
ub

je
ct

 s
ite

. 

U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 6

5 
of

 1
36



3
3

79
1 

M
ai

n 
St

re
et

: M
ar

ke
t A

na
ly

si
s 

| D
RA

FT

M
an

y 
ot

he
r w

es
te

rn
 c

iti
es

 h
av

e 
be

co
m

e 
ex

tr
ao

rd
in

ar
y 

w
in

e 
to

ur
is

m
 lo

ca
tio

ns
—

M
cM

in
nv

ill
e,

 W
al

la
 W

al
la

, S
on

om
a,

 
H

ea
ld

sb
ur

g.
 

W
hi

le
 th

is
 tr

an
sf

or
m

at
io

n 
ta

ke
s 

tim
e,

 it
 c

an
 h

ap
pe

n 
in

 D
al

la
s 

to
o.

D
ow

nt
ow

n 
W

al
la

 W
al

la

U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 6

6 
of

 1
36



C
ha

ll
en

ge
s

O
f t

he
 M

ar
ke

t a
nd

 S
ite

 
Fo

r a
 F

ut
ur

e 
H

ot
el

 P
ro

je
ct

 

U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 6

7 
of

 1
36



3
5

79
1 

M
ai

n 
St

re
et

: M
ar

ke
t A

na
ly

si
s 

| D
RA

FT

M
an

y 
ci

tie
s,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
M

cM
in

nv
ill

e 
an

d 
ot

he
r l

oc
at

io
ns

 in
 Y

am
hi

ll 
C

ou
nt

y,
 

ar
e 

cl
os

er
 to

 th
e 

Po
rt

la
nd

 m
et

ro
 a

re
a 

th
an

 D
al

la
s.

 

U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 6

8 
of

 1
36



3
6

79
1 

M
ai

n 
St

re
et

: M
ar

ke
t A

na
ly

si
s 

| D
RA

FT

A 
ho

te
l a

nd
 o

th
er

 ty
pe

s 
of

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t w
ill

 fa
ce

 s
ev

er
al

 c
rit

ic
al

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t f
ea

si
bi

lit
y 

is
su

es
, s

om
e 

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
 to

 th
is

 lo
ca

tio
n:

▪
Ac

hi
ev

ab
le

 ro
om

 ra
te

s 
(A

ve
ra

ge
 D

ai
ly

 R
at

es
 o

r A
D

R)

▪
O

cc
up

an
cy

. 

▪
Si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

ly
 re

du
ce

d 
av

ai
la

bi
lit

y 
of

 fi
na

nc
in

g 
an

d 
m

or
e 

st
rin

ge
nt

 
fin

an
ci

ng
 te

rm
s.

▪
H

ig
he

r c
os

ts
 o

f b
or

ro
w

in
g 

(h
ig

he
r i

nt
er

es
t r

at
es

).

▪
G

re
at

er
 n

ee
d 

fo
r e

qu
ity

.

▪
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

co
st

 e
sc

al
at

io
n.

U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 6

9 
of

 1
36



3
7

79
1 

M
ai

n 
St

re
et

: M
ar

ke
t A

na
ly

si
s 

| D
RA

FT

Th
e 

In
de

pe
nd

en
ce

 H
ot

el
 h

as
 re

po
rt

ed
ly

 s
tr

ug
gl

ed
, 

de
sp

ite
 it

s 
lo

ca
tio

n 
ov

er
lo

ok
in

g 
th

e 
W

ill
am

et
te

 R
iv

er
, i

n 
cl

os
er

 
pr

ox
im

ity
 to

 S
al

em
 a

nd
 I-

5,
 a

nd
 in

 a
 d

ow
nt

ow
n 

w
ith

 m
or

e 
to

ur
is

t a
tt

ra
ct

io
ns

. 

So
m

e 
of

 th
e 

ke
y 

is
su

es
 a

t t
he

 In
de

pe
nd

en
ce

 s
ee

m
 to

 h
av

e 
be

en
:

•
Re

la
tiv

el
y 

hi
gh

 fi
xe

d 
co

st
s 

(e
.g

., 
m

an
ag

em
en

t)
 c

om
pa

re
d 

to
 s

m
al

l s
iz

e

•
O

cc
up

an
cy

 b
el

ow
 6

0%
, k

ep
t l

ow
 b

y 
C

ov
id

 a
nd

 th
en

 e
nr

ol
lm

en
t d

ro
ps

 
at

 W
O

U
.

•
In

de
pe

nd
en

ce
 is

 n
ot

 a
s 

w
el

l k
no

w
n 

as
 S

al
em

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 w

in
e 

co
un

tr
y 

de
st

in
at

io
ns

. 

•
H

ig
h 

co
st

 o
f c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n.

U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 7

0 
of

 1
36



3
8

79
1 

M
ai

n 
St

re
et

: M
ar

ke
t A

na
ly

si
s 

| D
RA

FT

D
al

la
s’

 re
la

tiv
el

y 
sm

al
l e

m
pl

oy
m

en
t b

as
e 

w
ill

 m
ak

e 
fil

lin
g 

ro
om

s 
on

 M
on

da
y 

th
ro

ug
h 

W
ed

ne
sd

ay
 n

ig
ht

s 
di

ffi
cu

lt.
 

U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 7

1 
of

 1
36



3
9

79
1 

M
ai

n 
St

re
et

: M
ar

ke
t A

na
ly

si
s 

| D
RA

FT

D
ow

nt
ow

n 
D

al
la

s 
is

 n
ot

 y
et

 a
 w

el
l-

kn
ow

n 
to

ur
is

t 
de

st
in

at
io

n,
 a

nd
 d

oe
s 

no
t h

av
e 

th
e 

sa
m

e 
le

ve
l o

f 
re

st
au

ra
nt

s,
 s

to
re

s,
 e

ve
nt

s,
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 a
m

en
iti

es
 a

s 
ot

he
r l

oc
at

io
ns

 s
uc

h 
as

 M
cM

in
nv

ill
e.

 

U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 7

2 
of

 1
36



4
0

79
1 

M
ai

n 
St

re
et

: M
ar

ke
t A

na
ly

si
s 

| D
RA

FT

At
 a

bo
ut

 a
 h

al
f-

ac
re

, t
he

 s
ite

 c
an

 o
nl

y 
ac

co
m

m
od

at
e 

so
m

e 
of

 th
e 

pa
rk

in
g 

re
qu

ire
d,

 a
nd

 it
 p

ro
ba

bl
y 

ca
nn

ot
 

ac
co

m
m

od
at

e 
a 

ho
te

l o
f m

or
e 

th
an

 8
0 

ro
om

s.
 

U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 7

3 
of

 1
36



4
1

79
1 

M
ai

n 
St

re
et

: M
ar

ke
t A

na
ly

si
s 

| D
RA

FT

Th
e 

St
at

e 
of

 O
re

go
n’

s 
pr

ev
ai

lin
g 

w
ag

e 
ra

te
 la

w
s,

 
ad

m
in

is
te

re
d 

by
 B

O
LI

, l
im

its
 th

e 
w

ay
s 

th
at

 th
e 

C
ity

 
ca

n 
su

pp
or

t d
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
f a

 h
ot

el
. 

U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 7

4 
of

 1
36



4
2

79
1 

M
ai

n 
St

re
et

: M
ar

ke
t A

na
ly

si
s 

| D
RA

FT

Bu
ild

in
g 

a 
m

ix
ed

-u
se

 h
ot

el
 o

n 
th

e 
si

te
 w

ill
 b

e 
ch

al
le

ng
in

g,
 b

ut
 it

 
is

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
“m

ar
gi

n 
of

 e
ffo

rt
.”

 

Ke
y 

St
re

ng
th

s
•

D
al

la
s’

 c
om

m
un

ity
 v

is
io

n
•

W
or

ld
w

id
e 

to
ur

is
m

 in
te

re
st

 in
 th

e 
W

ill
am

et
te

 V
al

le
y

•
D

ev
el

op
er

 in
te

re
st

 in
 h

ot
el

s 
in

 W
ill

am
et

te
 V

al
le

y 
•

M
et

ric
s 

ac
hi

ev
ed

 a
nd

 ta
rg

et
ed

 (A
D

R,
 O

cc
up

an
cy

, 
an

d 
Re

vP
AR

) a
t o

th
er

 b
ou

tiq
ue

 h
ot

el
s,

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
ly

 
th

e 
At

tic
us

 a
nd

 p
la

nn
ed

 D
ow

nt
ow

n 
D

ay
to

n 
ho

te
l

•
U

ni
qu

e 
w

in
er

ie
s,

 h
is

to
ric

 d
ow

nt
ow

n,
 B

as
ke

tt
 S

lo
ug

h,
 

an
d 

ot
he

r a
m

en
iti

es
 in

 D
al

la
s 

an
d 

Po
lk

 C
ou

nt
y

Ke
y 

ch
al

le
ng

es
•

H
ig

h 
in

te
re

st
 ra

te
s 

an
d 

st
rin

ge
nt

 le
nd

in
g 

st
an

da
rd

s 
•

Lo
w

 o
cc

up
an

cy
 a

t I
nd

ep
en

de
nc

e 
H

ot
el

, p
ar

tic
ul

ar
ly

 
fo

r w
ee

kl
y/

bu
si

ne
ss

 tr
av

el
, a

nd
 fo

llo
w

in
g 

W
O

U
 

en
ro

llm
en

t d
ec

lin
es

 
•

D
ow

nt
ow

n 
D

al
la

s 
is

 n
ot

 y
et

 a
 to

ur
is

t d
es

tin
at

io
n

Th
e 

ci
ty

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 a

bl
e 

to
 a

tt
ra

ct
 a

 q
ua

lit
y 

ho
te

l 
de

ve
lo

pe
r t

o 
th

e 
si

te
, b

ut
 s

ta
ff 

an
d 

co
ns

ul
ta

nt
 e

ffo
rt

, 
in

ve
st

m
en

ts
, a

nd
 p

at
ie

nc
e 

m
ay

 b
e 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y.

U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 7

5 
of

 1
36



H
ou

si
ng

 M
ar

ke
t A

na
ly

si
s

U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 7

6 
of

 1
36



S
tr

en
gt

hs
O

f t
he

 M
ar

ke
t a

nd
 S

ite
 

Fo
r a

 F
ut

ur
e 

M
ix

ed
-U

se
 H

ou
si

ng
 P

ro
je

ct
 

U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 7

7 
of

 1
36



4
5

79
1 

M
ai

n 
St

re
et

: M
ar

ke
t A

na
ly

si
s 

| D
RA

FT

D
al

la
s 

ha
s 

be
en

 
gr

ow
in

g 
ra

pi
dl

y,
 

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
ly

 d
ue

 to
 

si
ng

le
 fa

m
ily

 
ho

m
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t. 

So
ur

ce
: H

U
D

 (U
.S

. D
ep

ar
tm

en
t o

f H
ou

si
ng

 a
nd

 U
rb

an
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t),

 S
ta

te
 o

f t
he

 C
iti

es
 

D
at

a 
Sy

st
em

s 
(S

O
C

D
S)

, h
tt

ps
:/

/w
w

w
.h

ud
us

er
.g

ov
/p

or
ta

l/d
at

as
et

s/
so

cd
s.

ht
m

l

H
ou

si
ng

 C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n,
 F

iv
e 

Ye
ar

 R
ol

lin
g 

Av
er

ag
e

02040608010
0

12
0

14
0

19
80

19
85

19
90

19
95

20
00

20
05

20
10

20
15

20
20

20
23

Si
ng

le
 F

am
ily

M
ul

tif
am

ily

U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 7

8 
of

 1
36

https://www.huduser.gov/portal/datasets/socds.html


4
6

79
1 

M
ai

n 
St

re
et

: M
ar

ke
t A

na
ly

si
s 

| D
RA

FT

D
al

la
s 

is
 

pr
oj

ec
te

d 
to

 
co

nt
in

ue
 to

 g
ro

w
 

ra
pi

dl
y.

So
ur

ce
: S

oc
ia

l E
xp

lo
re

r (
w

w
w

.s
oc

ia
le

xp
lo

re
r.

co
m

). 
So

ci
al

 E
xp

lo
re

r p
ro

vi
de

s 
a 

ra
ng

e 
of

 
de

m
og

ra
ph

ic
 d

at
a 

an
d 

m
ap

pi
ng

 to
ol

s,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 th
e 

U
S 

C
en

su
s 

an
d 

ot
he

r p
ub

lic
 

an
d 

pr
iv

at
e 

da
ta

 s
et

s.

Pr
oj

ec
te

d 
H

ou
se

ho
ld

 G
ro

w
th

: A
nn

ua
l G

ro
w

th
 

Ra
te

 a
nd

 T
ot

al
 G

ro
w

th
, 2

02
0 

to
 2

02
8

D
al

la
s

M
on

m
ou

th
In

de
pe

nd
en

ce

N
ew

be
rg

M
cM

in
nv

ill
e

C
an

by

Si
lv

er
to

n

Al
ba

ny

Th
e 

D
al

le
s

0

50
0

1,
00

0

1,
50

0

2,
00

0

2,
50

0

3,
00

0 0.
0%

0.
5%

1.
0%

1.
5%

2.
0%

2.
5%

Total Household Growth, 2020 - 2028

C
om

po
un

d 
An

nu
al

 G
ro

w
th

 R
at

e 
(C

AG
R)

U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 7

9 
of

 1
36



4
7

79
1 

M
ai

n 
St

re
et

: M
ar

ke
t A

na
ly

si
s 

| D
RA

FT

D
al

la
s 

ha
s 

se
ve

ra
l 

de
m

og
ra

ph
ic

 a
tt

rib
ut

es
 th

at
 

ar
e 

de
si

ra
bl

e 
fo

r a
pa

rt
m

en
t 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t, 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
hi

gh
er

-in
co

m
e 

ho
us

eh
ol

ds
, 

a 
la

rg
e 

sh
ar

e 
of

 w
hi

te
-c

ol
la

r 
em

pl
oy

ee
s,

 s
m

al
l 

ho
us

eh
ol

ds
, a

nd
 a

 la
rg

e 
sh

ar
e 

of
 re

tir
ee

s.
 

Ac
co

rd
in

g 
to

 th
e 

an
al

ys
is

 b
y 

th
e 

Br
oo

ki
ng

s 
In

st
itu

tio
n 

(“
W

ho
 

Li
ve

s 
D

ow
nt

ow
n”

) a
nd

 v
ar

io
us

 o
th

er
 m

ar
ke

t a
na

ly
se

s,
 re

si
de

nt
s 

of
 n

ew
, m

ar
ke

t-
ra

te
 d

ow
nt

ow
n 

ho
us

in
g 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 p
re

do
m

in
an

tly
 

ex
hi

bi
t t

he
 a

tt
rib

ut
es

 s
ho

w
n 

be
lo

w
. I

n 
m

an
y 

ca
se

s,
 D

al
la

s’
 

po
pu

la
tio

n 
ex

hi
bi

ts
 th

es
e 

at
tr

ib
ut

es
, w

hi
ch

 d
ev

el
op

er
s 

w
ill

 
ge

ne
ra

lly
 s

ee
 a

s 
po

si
tiv

e 
fo

r d
ev

el
op

m
en

t a
t 7

91
 M

ai
n 

St
re

et
.

Re
si

de
nt

s 
of

 n
ew

, m
ar

ke
t-

ra
te

, d
ow

nt
ow

n 
ho

us
in

g 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 

ty
pi

ca
lly

 h
av

e 
th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

at
tr

ib
ut

es
:

•
M

id
dl

e 
to

 h
ig

he
r i

nc
om

e 
ho

us
eh

ol
ds

•
1 

an
d 

2 
pe

rs
on

 h
ou

se
ho

ld
s 

•
Fa

ll 
w

ith
in

 o
ne

 o
f t

he
se

 a
ge

 g
ro

up
s:

  
•

C
ol

le
ge

 s
tu

de
nt

s 
•

Yo
un

g 
ad

ul
ts

, e
.g

., 
ag

es
 2

5 
to

 3
4

•
Se

ni
or

s,
 e

.g
., 

ag
es

 6
5+

•
Be

 e
m

pl
oy

ed
 in

 w
hi

te
 c

ol
la

r j
ob

s,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

pr
of

es
si

on
al

 
se

rv
ic

es
, f

in
an

ce
, s

ci
en

ce
, t

ec
hn

ol
og

y,
 g

ov
er

nm
en

t, 
he

al
th

ca
re

, a
nd

 re
la

te
d 

fie
ld

s

So
ur

ce
: W

ho
 L

iv
es

 D
ow

nt
ow

n,
 B

ro
ok

in
gs

 In
st

itu
tio

n,
 

ht
tp

s:
//

w
w

w
.b

ro
ok

in
gs

.e
du

/a
rt

ic
le

s/
w

ho
-li

ve
s-

do
w

nt
ow

n/
 

U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 8

0 
of

 1
36

https://www.brookings.edu/articles/who-lives-downtown/


4
8

79
1 

M
ai

n 
St

re
et

: M
ar

ke
t A

na
ly

si
s 

| D
RA

FT

H
ou

se
ho

ld
 in

co
m

es
 in

 D
al

la
s 

ar
e 

in
cr

ea
si

ng
. 

So
ur

ce
: S

oc
ia

l E
xp

lo
re

r, 
Fo

ru
m

 P
la

ce
m

ak
in

g.
 

C
ha

ng
e 

in
 M

ed
ia

n 
H

ou
se

ho
ld

 In
co

m
e,

 2
02

0 
to

 2
02

8

$6
6,

90
8

$4
3,

49
7

$5
0,

58
9

$7
4,

26
4

$6
1,

47
4

$7
3,

90
1

$6
9,

20
8

$6
2,

36
4

$5
9,

85
3

$2
3,

70
8

$3
3,

92
6

$3
3,

22
4

$3
9,

86
4

$3
5,

89
6

$5
0,

31
4

$3
5,

51
2

$2
9,

31
3

$2
6,

55
9

$9
0,

61
6

$7
7,

42
3

$8
3,

81
3

$1
14

,1
28

$9
7,

37
0

$1
24

,2
15

$1
04

,7
20

$9
1,

67
7

$8
6,

41
2

$0

$2
0,

00
0

$4
0,

00
0

$6
0,

00
0

$8
0,

00
0

$1
00

,0
00

$1
20

,0
00

$1
40

,0
00

D
al

la
s

M
on

m
ou

th
In

de
pe

n
N

ew
be

rg
M

cM
in

n
C

an
by

Si
lv

er
to

n
Al

ba
ny

Th
e 

D
al

le
s

.
.

de
nc

e
.

vi
lle

.
.

.
.

M
ed

ia
n 

H
ou

se
ho

ld
 In

co
m

e,
 2

02
0

C
ha

ng
e

M
ed

ia
n 

H
ou

se
ho

ld
 In

co
m

e,
 2

02
8

U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 8

1 
of

 1
36



4
9

79
1 

M
ai

n 
St

re
et

: M
ar

ke
t A

na
ly

si
s 

| D
RA

FT

A 
la

rg
e 

sh
ar

e 
of

 D
al

la
s’

 h
ou

se
ho

ld
s 

ar
e 

em
pl

oy
ed

 in
 w

hi
te

 
co

lla
r j

ob
s,

 w
hi

ch
 is

 c
or

re
la

te
d 

w
ith

 in
te

re
st

 in
 d

ow
nt

ow
n 

ho
us

in
g.

So
ur

ce
: S

oc
ia

l E
xp

lo
re

r, 
Fo

ru
m

 P
la

ce
m

ak
in

g.
 

W
hi

te
 C

ol
la

r a
nd

 B
lu

e 
C

ol
la

r J
ob

s,
 C

om
pa

ris
on

 C
iti

es

Em
pl

oy
m

en
t

W
as

co
 C

ty

D
al

la
s

M
on

m
ou

th
In

de
pe

n
N

ew
be

rg
M

cM
in

n
C

an
by

Si
lv

er
to

n
Al

ba
ny

Th
e 

D
al

le
s

de
nc

e
vi

lle

W
hi

te
 C

ol
la

r
72

%
77

%
60

%
71

%
68

%
67

%
71

%
69

%
70

%

Bl
ue

 C
ol

la
r

28
%

23
%

40
%

29
%

32
%

33
%

29
%

31
%

30
%

Po
lk

 C
ou

nt
y

Ya
m

hi
ll 

C
ou

nt
y

W
ill

am
et

te
 V

al
le

y

U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 8

2 
of

 1
36



5
0

79
1 

M
ai

n 
St

re
et

: M
ar

ke
t A

na
ly

si
s 

| D
RA

FT

A 
la

rg
e 

sh
ar

e 
of

 D
al

la
s’

 p
op

ul
at

io
n 

is
 a

ge
d 

65
+,

 in
di

ca
tin

g 
a 

st
ro

ng
 p

ot
en

tia
l f

or
 a

ge
-r

es
tr

ic
te

d 
or

 s
en

io
r h

ou
si

ng
 

do
w

nt
ow

n.
 

So
ur

ce
: S

oc
ia

l E
xp

lo
re

r, 
Fo

ru
m

 P
la

ce
m

ak
in

g.
 

Ag
e 

C
at

eg
or

ie
s 

of
 H

ou
se

ho
ld

s,
 D

al
la

s 
an

d 
C

om
pa

ris
on

 C
iti

es

U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 8

3 
of

 1
36



5
1

79
1 

M
ai

n 
St

re
et

: M
ar

ke
t A

na
ly

si
s 

| D
RA

FT

62
%

 o
f a

ll 
D

al
la

s 
ho

us
eh

ol
ds

 h
av

e 
1 

or
 2

 p
eo

pl
e.

 

Sm
al

l h
ou

se
ho

ld
s 

ar
e 

m
or

e 
lik

el
y 

to
 li

ve
 in

 d
ow

nt
ow

n 
ho

us
in

g.
 

So
ur

ce
: S

oc
ia

l E
xp

lo
re

r, 
Fo

ru
m

 P
la

ce
m

ak
in

g.
 

1 
an

d 
2 

Pe
rs

on
 H

ou
se

ho
ld

s 
as

 a
 S

ha
re

 o
f A

ll 
H

ou
se

ho
ld

s 

62
%

60
%

47
%

56
%

60
%

56
%

55
%

60
%

67
%

0%10
%

20
%

30
%

40
%

50
%

60
%

70
%

80
%

D
al

la
s

M
on

m
ou

th
In

de
pe

n
N

ew
be

rg
M

cM
in

n
C

an
by

Si
lv

er
to

n
Al

ba
ny

Th
e 

D
al

le
s

.
.

de
nc

e
.

vi
lle

.
.

.
.

U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 8

4 
of

 1
36



5
2

79
1 

M
ai

n 
St

re
et

: M
ar

ke
t A

na
ly

si
s 

| D
RA

FT

D
ow

nt
ow

n 
ho

us
in

g 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 h

av
e 

be
en

 b
ui

lt 
in

 
ot

he
r s

m
al

l c
iti

es
 in

 th
e 

W
ill

am
et

te
 V

al
le

y.
 

Bu
ilt

 o
n 

ci
ty

-o
w

ne
d 

la
nd

, 
w

ith
 c

ity
 s

up
po

rt
.

U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 8

5 
of

 1
36



C
ha

ll
en

ge
s

O
f t

he
 M

ar
ke

t a
nd

 S
ite

 
Fo

r a
 F

ut
ur

e 
M

ix
ed

-U
se

 H
ou

si
ng

 P
ro

je
ct

 

U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 8

6 
of

 1
36



5
4

79
1 

M
ai

n 
St

re
et

: M
ar

ke
t A

na
ly

si
s 

| D
RA

FT

Th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t e

nv
is

io
ne

d 
fo

r 7
91

 M
ai

n 
St

re
et

—
a 

fo
ur

- o
r f

iv
e-

st
or

y,
 

m
ix

ed
-u

se
 p

od
iu

m
 

pr
oj

ec
t—

is
 m

or
e 

ex
pe

ns
iv

e 
to

 b
ui

ld
 th

an
 

th
e 

tw
o-

 a
nd

 th
re

e-
st

or
y 

w
al

ku
p 

ap
ar

tm
en

ts
 

co
m

m
on

 in
 D

al
la

s.
 

D
ev

el
op

er
s 

w
ill

 re
qu

ire
 h

ig
he

r r
en

ts
 to

 
m

ak
e 

su
ch

 a
 p

ro
je

ct
 p

en
ci

l. 

W
oo

d 
Fr

am
e

4 
ov

er
 1

, M
id

ris
e 

Po
di

um
W

al
k 

U
p 

Ap
ar

tm
en

ts
Ap

ar
tm

en
ts

Su
rf

ac
e 

pa
rk

ed
 w

ith
 s

ta
irw

el
ls

Su
rf

ac
e 

pa
rk

ed
 w

ith
 e

le
va

to
r(

s)

5 4
3

3
2

2
1

1 C
os

t P
re

m
iu

m
s:

G
ro

un
d 

flo
or

 re
ta

il,
 in

cl
ud

in
g

te
na

nt
 im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
, v

en
tin

g
C

on
cr

et
e 

G
ro

un
d 

Fl
oo

r P
od

iu
m

Po
st

-t
en

si
on

ed
 s

la
b

El
ev

at
or

(s
)

En
cl

os
ed

 s
ta

irw
el

ls
M

or
e 

in
te

rio
r h

al
lw

ay
s/

co
m

m
on

 a
re

a
Po

te
nt

ia
lly

, a
dd

t'l
 fo

un
da

tio
n 

w
or

k
C

os
tly

 m
ob

ili
za

tio
n 

on
 u

rb
an

 s
ite

s

~ 
$2

75
,0

00
+ 

co
st

 p
er

 u
ni

t
~ 

$3
50

,0
00

+ 
co

st
 p

er
 u

ni
t

no
t i

nc
lu

di
ng

 la
nd

no
t i

nc
lu

di
ng

 la
nd

U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 8

7 
of

 1
36



5
5

79
1 

M
ai

n 
St

re
et

: M
ar

ke
t A

na
ly

si
s 

| D
RA

FT

O
f t

he
 1

20
 a

pa
rt

m
en

t 
bu

ild
in

gs
 b

ui
lt 

in
 D

al
la

s 
an

d 
 

th
e 

co
m

pa
ris

on
 c

iti
es

 s
in

ce
 

19
80

, 3
 h

av
e 

be
en

 fo
ur

 o
r 

m
or

e 
st

or
ie

s.
 

So
ur

ce
: C

oS
ta

r, 
Fo

ru
m

 P
la

ce
m

ak
in

g.
 

10
 

67
 

40
 

3 
-  

 
 - 1

0

 2
0

 3
0

 4
0

 5
0

 6
0

 7
0

 8
0

1
2

3
4

5

Number of Apartment Units 

N
um

be
r o

f S
to

rie
s 

of
 B

ui
ld

in
g

N
um

be
r o

f A
pa

rt
m

en
t B

ui
ld

in
gs

 
Bu

ilt
 b

y 
Bu

ild
in

g 
H

ei
gh

t, 
19

80
 to

 2
02

3,
 in

 
D

al
la

s 
an

d 
C

om
pa

ris
on

 C
iti

es
, 

M
ar

ke
t R

at
e 

O
nl

y

55
3 

3,
71

3 
3,

64
4 

13
4 

0
 -

 5
00

 1
,0

00

 1
,5

00

 2
,0

00

 2
,5

00

 3
,0

00

 3
,5

00

 4
,0

00

1
2

3
4

5

Number of Apartment Units 

N
um

be
r o

f S
to

rie
s 

of
 B

ui
ld

in
g

N
um

be
r o

f A
pa

rt
m

en
t U

ni
ts

 
Bu

ilt
 b

y 
Bu

ild
in

g 
H

ei
gh

t, 
19

80
 to

 2
02

3,
 in

 
D

al
la

s 
an

d 
C

om
pa

ris
on

 C
iti

es
, 

M
ar

ke
t R

at
e 

O
nl

y

O
f t

he
 8

,0
44

 a
pa

rt
m

en
t u

ni
ts

 
bu

ilt
 in

 D
al

la
s 

an
d 

 th
e 

co
m

pa
ris

on
 c

iti
es

 s
in

ce
 1

98
0,

 
13

4 
un

its
 h

av
e 

be
en

 in
 

bu
ild

in
gs

 o
f f

ou
r o

r m
or

e 
st

or
ie

s.
 

U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 8

8 
of

 1
36



5
6

79
1 

M
ai

n 
St

re
et

: M
ar

ke
t A

na
ly

si
s 

| D
RA

FT

Ta
rg

et
 re

nt

Ap
ar

tm
en

t r
en

ts
 in

 D
al

la
s 

ar
e 

be
lo

w
 w

ha
t m

os
t d

ev
el

op
er

s 
w

ill
 e

xp
ec

t a
t 7

91
 M

ai
n 

St
re

et
. 

Re
nt

 P
er

 S
qu

ar
e 

Fo
ot

 fo
r A

ll 
Ap

ar
tm

en
t U

ni
ts

, 
Re

ce
nt

 P
ro

je
ct

s 
an

d 
C

ity
w

id
e 

Av
er

ag
es

$1
.9

2
$2

.0
2

$2
.8

4

$1
.2

0
$1

.2
9

$1
.6

9
$1

.7
3

$0
.0

0

$0
.5

0

$1
.0

0

$1
.5

0

$2
.0

0

$2
.5

0

$3
.0

0

In
d.

 L
an

di
ng

O
sp

re
y 

Po
in

t
Th

e 
D

ah
lia

D
al

la
s

M
on

m
ou

th
In

de
pe

n
C

an
by

In
de

pe
nd

en
ce

In
de

pe
nd

en
ce

C
an

by
.

.
de

nc
e

.

Re
ce

nt
 D

ow
nt

ow
n 

H
ou

si
ng

 P
ro

je
ct

s
M

ar
ke

t A
ve

ra
ge

s 
fo

r C
iti

es

Ap
ar

tm
en

t d
ev

el
op

er
s 

in
te

rv
ie

w
ed

 in
 2

02
4 

in
di

ca
te

 th
at

 
th

ey
 w

ou
ld

 lo
ok

 fo
r a

 ta
rg

et
 re

nt
al

 ra
te

 o
f a

bo
ut

 $
2.

75
 p

er
 

sq
ua

re
 fo

ot
 p

er
 m

on
th

 in
 o

rd
er

 to
 g

en
er

at
e 

an
 

ac
ce

pt
ab

le
 ra

te
 o

f r
et

ur
n.

 T
hi

s 
eq

ua
te

s 
to

 a
 m

on
th

ly
 re

nt
 

of
 $

1,
51

0 
fo

r a
 5

50
 s

qu
ar

e 
fo

ot
 s

tu
di

o 
ap

ar
tm

en
t. 

 

U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 8

9 
of

 1
36



5
7

79
1 

M
ai

n 
St

re
et

: M
ar

ke
t A

na
ly

si
s 

| D
RA

FT

Ap
ar

tm
en

t r
en

ts
 in

 D
al

la
s 

ar
e 

le
ss

 th
an

 th
os

e 
in

 
co

m
pa

ra
bl

e 
ci

tie
s.

 

M
on

th
ly

 R
en

t f
or

 1
 B

ed
ro

om
 A

pa
rt

m
en

ts
, 

Re
ce

nt
 P

ro
je

ct
s 

an
d 

C
ity

w
id

e 
Av

er
ag

es

$1
,5

68
$1

,4
22

$1
,6

41

$9
14

$1
,0

53

$1
,5

21
$1

,5
11

In
d.

 L
an

di
ng

O
sp

re
y 

Po
in

t
Th

e 
D

ah
lia

D
al

la
s

M
on

m
ou

th
In

de
pe

n
C

an
by

In
de

pe
nd

en
ce

In
de

pe
nd

en
ce

C
an

by
.

.
de

nc
e

.

Re
ce

nt
 D

ow
nt

ow
n 

H
ou

si
ng

 P
ro

je
ct

s
M

ar
ke

t A
ve

ra
ge

s 
fo

r C
iti

es

U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 9

0 
of

 1
36



5
8

79
1 

M
ai

n 
St

re
et

: M
ar

ke
t A

na
ly

si
s 

| D
RA

FT

D
al

la
s 

do
es

 n
ot

 h
av

e 
a 

la
rg

e 
nu

m
be

r o
f y

ou
ng

 
ho

us
eh

ol
ds

 in
 th

ei
r 2

0s
 a

nd
 

30
s—

th
e 

pr
im

ar
y 

re
nt

al
 

ho
us

in
g 

ag
e 

gr
ou

p.

W
as

co
 C

ty

D
al

la
s

M
on

m
ou

th
In

de
pe

n
N

ew
be

rg
M

cM
in

n
C

an
by

Si
lv

er
to

n
Al

ba
ny

Th
e 

D
al

le
s

de
nc

e
vi

lle

0 
to

 1
7

20
%

22
%

26
%

23
%

22
%

22
%

28
%

25
%

23
%

18
 to

 2
4 

Ye
ar

s 
(S

tu
de

nt
 H

ou
si

ng
)

12
%

27
%

19
%

13
%

11
%

8%
5%

8%
8%

25
 to

 3
4 

Ye
ar

s 
(P

ri
m

e 
R

en
ta

l A
pt

. A
ge

)
13

%
15

%
12

%
17

%
11

%
12

%
13

%
14

%
14

%

35
 to

 6
5 

(L
ow

er
 p

ro
pe

ns
ity

 o
f a

pt
 re

si
de

nc
e)

32
%

25
%

34
%

34
%

35
%

40
%

39
%

37
%

35
%

65
+ 

(S
en

io
r H

ou
si

ng
)

23
%

10
%

10
%

14
%

20
%

18
%

16
%

16
%

20
%

Po
lk

 C
ou

nt
y

Ya
m

hi
ll 

C
ou

nt
y

W
ill

am
et

te
 V

al
le

y

U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 9

1 
of

 1
36



5
9

79
1 

M
ai

n 
St

re
et

: M
ar

ke
t A

na
ly

si
s 

| D
RA

FT

W
hi

le
 a

pa
rt

m
en

t d
ev

el
op

m
en

t h
as

 b
ee

n 
re

la
tiv

el
y 

sl
ow

 in
 

D
al

la
s,

 m
or

e 
th

an
 7

00
 a

pa
rt

m
en

t u
ni

ts
 c

ou
ld

 b
re

ak
 g

ro
un

d 
be

tw
ee

n 
20

24
 a

nd
 2

03
0—

a 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 in
cr

ea
se

 in
 th

e 
ra

te
 o

f 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t. 

So
ur

ce
: C

oS
ta

r, 
Fo

ru
m

 P
la

ce
m

ak
in

g.
 

05010
0

15
0

20
0

25
0

30
0

35
0

19
90

19
95

20
00

20
05

20
10

20
15

20
20

20
25

20
30

Number of Units

Ap
ar

tm
en

t U
ni

ts
 B

ui
lt 

in
 D

al
la

s 
by

 Y
ea

r

Ap
t. 

U
ni

ts
5 

pe
r.

 M
ov

. A
vg

. (
Ap

t. 
U

ni
ts

)

U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 9

2 
of

 1
36



6
0

79
1 

M
ai

n 
St

re
et

: M
ar

ke
t A

na
ly

si
s 

| D
RA

FT

So
ur

ce
: C

ity
 o

f D
al

la
s,

 F
or

um
 P

la
ce

m
ak

in
g.

 

Ap
pr

ov
ed

 a
nd

 P
ro

po
se

d 
M

ul
tif

am
ily

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
, C

ity
 o

f D
al

la
s

Pr
oj

ec
t N

am
e

Ty
pe

Af
fo

rd
ab

le
M

ar
ke

t
To

ta
l

U
ni

ts
U

ni
ts

U
ni

ts
7 

St
ar

 A
pa

rt
m

en
ts

M
ar

ke
t

0
44

44
M

ill
 S

ta
tio

n 
(P

ol
k 

C
D

C
)

Af
fo

rd
ab

le
57

0
57

To
ko

la
 A

pa
rt

m
en

ts
 

M
ar

ke
t

0
20

4
20

4
FI

FE
 A

pa
rt

m
en

ts
M

ar
ke

t
0

31
6

31
6

La
ke

si
de

 A
pa

rt
m

en
ts

M
ar

ke
t

0
12

12
El

le
nd

al
e 

Av
e 

Ap
ar

tm
en

ts
 (P

ol
k 

C
D

C
)

Af
fo

rd
ab

le
20

0
20

Pr
is

im
 A

pa
rt

m
en

ts
M

ar
ke

t
0

66
66

To
ta

l
77

64
2

71
9

U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 9

3 
of

 1
36



6
1

79
1 

M
ai

n 
St

re
et

: M
ar

ke
t A

na
ly

si
s 

| D
RA

FT

Bu
ild

in
g 

m
ix

ed
-u

se
 h

ou
si

ng
 o

n 
th

e 
si

te
 w

ill
 b

e 
ch

al
le

ng
in

g,
 b

ut
 it

 
is

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
“m

ar
gi

n 
of

 e
ffo

rt
.”

 

Ke
y 

St
re

ng
th

s
•

D
al

la
s 

is
 g

ro
w

in
g 

ra
pi

dl
y,

 a
nd

 m
an

y 
of

 th
e 

ne
w

 re
si

de
nt

s 
ar

e 
m

id
dl

e 
an

d 
up

pe
r-

in
co

m
e 

ho
us

eh
ol

ds
.

•
D

al
la

s 
ha

s 
hi

gh
 le

ve
ls

 o
f w

hi
te

 c
ol

la
r e

m
pl

oy
m

en
t, 

65
+ 

ag
ed

 
ho

us
eh

ol
ds

, a
nd

 1
 a

nd
 2

 p
er

so
n 

ho
us

eh
ol

ds
.

•
Re

ce
nt

 d
ow

nt
ow

n,
 m

ix
ed

-u
se

 h
ou

si
ng

 p
ro

je
ct

s 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 in

 In
de

pe
nd

en
ce

, M
on

m
ou

th
, C

an
by

, a
nd

 o
th

er
 

sm
al

l- 
an

d 
m

id
-s

iz
e 

ci
tie

s 
in

 O
re

go
n.

Ke
y 

C
ha

lle
ng

es
•

M
ix

ed
-u

se
, i

nf
ill

, p
od

iu
m

 p
ro

je
ct

s 
co

st
 m

or
e 

an
d 

th
er

ef
or

e 
re

qu
ire

 h
ig

he
r r

en
ts

 in
 o

rd
er

 to
 p

en
ci

l
•

D
al

la
s’

 c
ur

re
nt

 re
nt

s,
 a

nd
 th

e 
re

nt
s 

at
 re

ce
nt

 h
ou

si
ng

 p
ro

je
ct

s 
in

 In
de

pe
nd

en
ce

, a
re

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
tly

 lo
w

er
 th

an
 d

ev
el

op
er

s 
w

ou
ld

 e
xp

ec
t f

or
 a

 n
ew

 p
ro

je
ct

 a
t 7

91
 M

ai
n 

St
re

et
 

•
D

al
la

s 
ha

s 
re

la
tiv

el
y 

fe
w

 h
ou

se
ho

ld
s 

in
 th

ei
r 2

0s
 a

nd
 3

0s
—

th
e 

pr
im

ar
y 

re
nt

al
 h

ou
si

ng
 a

ge
 g

ro
up

s.
•

M
or

e 
th

an
 7

00
 a

pa
rt

m
en

t u
ni

ts
 a

re
 p

la
nn

ed
 fo

r D
al

la
s 

be
tw

ee
n 

20
24

 a
nd

 2
03

0.
 T

hi
s 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 n

ew
 s

up
pl

y 
co

ul
d 

dr
iv

e 
do

w
n 

re
nt

al
 ra

te
s 

an
d 

in
cr

ea
se

 v
ac

an
ci

es
. 

Th
e 

ci
ty

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 a

bl
e 

to
 a

tt
ra

ct
 a

 q
ua

lit
y 

m
ix

ed
-u

se
 h

ou
si

ng
 

de
ve

lo
pe

r t
o 

th
e 

si
te

, b
ut

 s
ta

ff 
an

d 
co

ns
ul

ta
nt

 e
ffo

rt
, 

in
ve

st
m

en
ts

, a
nd

 p
at

ie
nc

e 
m

ay
 b

e 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y.

U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 9

4 
of

 1
36



C
on

cl
us

io
ns

An
d 

Re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 9

5 
of

 1
36



6
3

79
1 

M
ai

n 
St

re
et

: M
ar

ke
t A

na
ly

si
s 

| D
RA

FT

Bu
ild

in
g 

ei
th

er
 m

ix
ed

-u
se

 h
ou

si
ng

 o
r a

 h
ot

el
 o

n 
th

e 
si

te
 w

ill
 b

e 
ch

al
le

ng
in

g.
 H

ot
el

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
w

ill
 p

ro
ba

bl
y 

be
 s

om
ew

ha
t m

or
e 

di
ffi

cu
lt.

U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 9

6 
of

 1
36



6
4

79
1 

M
ai

n 
St

re
et

: M
ar

ke
t A

na
ly

si
s 

| D
RA

FT

N
on

et
he

le
ss

, t
he

 C
ity

 s
ho

ul
d 

ag
gr

es
si

ve
ly

 m
ar

ke
t 

th
e 

si
te

 to
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t t

ea
m

s 
vi

a 
in

 2
02

5,
 v

ia
 

di
re

ct
 o

ut
re

ac
h 

an
d 

a 
Re

qu
es

t f
or

 Q
ua

lif
ic

at
io

ns
 

(R
FQ

). 
Th

e 
C

ity
 s

ho
ul

d 
so

lic
it 

in
te

re
st

 fr
om

 b
ot

h 
ho

te
l a

nd
 h

ou
si

ng
 d

ev
el

op
er

s,
 a

nd
 p

ot
en

tia
lly

 
de

ve
lo

pe
rs

 w
ith

 o
th

er
 c

on
ce

pt
s 

fo
r t

he
 s

ite
. 

Po
te

nt
ia

l s
ite

 u
se

s:
•

H
ot

el
 

•
H

ou
si

ng
 

•
M

ar
ke

t r
at

e 
ap

ar
tm

en
ts

 
•

W
or

kf
or

ce
 / 

m
id

dl
e 

in
co

m
e 

ho
us

in
g 

•
55

+,
 a

ge
 re

st
ric

te
d 

ho
us

in
g 

•
Se

ni
or

 h
ou

si
ng

 
•

C
o-

liv
in

g
•

Sh
or

t t
er

m
 re

nt
al

s,
 c

om
bi

ne
d 

w
ith

 h
ot

el
 o

r h
ou

si
ng

•
G

ro
un

d 
Fl

oo
r t

en
an

ts
•

Re
st

au
ra

nt
eu

rs
•

W
in

e 
Ta

st
in

g
•

O
th

er
 T

BD

U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 9

7 
of

 1
36



6
5

79
1 

M
ai

n 
St

re
et

: M
ar

ke
t A

na
ly

si
s 

| D
RA

FT

…
 th

e 
C

ity
 s

ho
ul

d 
si

m
ul

ta
ne

ou
sl

y 
se

ek
 p

ro
po

sa
ls

 
fr

om
 m

ix
ed

-u
se

 h
ou

si
ng

 d
ev

el
op

er
s,

 a
nd

 p
ot

en
tia

lly
 

de
ve

lo
pe

rs
 w

ith
 o

th
er

 c
on

ce
pt

s 
fo

r t
he

 s
ite

. 
“D

al
la

s 
W

in
e 

vi
lla

ge
”

H
ou

si
ng

U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 9

8 
of

 1
36



6
6

79
1 

M
ai

n 
St

re
et

: M
ar

ke
t A

na
ly

si
s 

| D
RA

FT

Th
e 

id
ea

l d
ev

el
op

m
en

t t
ea

m
 m

ay
 n

ee
d 

to
 in

cl
ud

e 
on

e 
or

 m
or

e 
w

el
l-c

ap
ita

liz
ed

 a
nd

/o
r l

oc
al

 e
qu

ity
 in

ve
st

or
s 

w
ith

 p
at

ie
nt

 c
ap

ita
l. 

•
D

al
la

s 
Re

tir
em

en
t V

ill
ag

e

•
W

ill
am

et
te

 V
al

le
y 

Vi
ne

ya
rd

s 

•
Ki

ng
 E

st
at

e 
W

in
er

y 

•
Bl

ed
so

e 
| M

cD
an

ie
ls

 W
in

er
y 

- W
ill

am
et

te
 V

al
le

y 
(D

re
w

 
Bl

ed
so

e)

•
At

tic
us

 H
ot

el
 d

ev
el

op
er

s

U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 9

9 
of

 1
36



6
7

79
1 

M
ai

n 
St

re
et

: M
ar

ke
t A

na
ly

si
s 

| D
RA

FT

A 
fu

tu
re

 h
ot

el
 a

t 7
91

 M
ai

n 
St

re
et

 s
ho

ul
d 

ce
le

br
at

e 
th

e 
be

st
 o

f D
al

la
s,

 P
ol

k 
C

ou
nt

y,
 a

nd
 W

ill
am

et
te

 
Va

lle
y.

 
Br

an
di

ng
 id

ea
s:

▪
Ze

ph
yr

ia

▪
“M

ee
t m

e 
at

 th
e 

sq
ua

re
.”

▪
Ti

m
be

r /
 M

ill
 / 

C
ro

ss
 L

am
in

at
ed

 T
im

be
r 

▪
Fe

nd
er

’s
 B

lu
e 

Bu
tt

er
fly

  

▪
Bi

rd
in

g

▪
Q

ui
lti

ng
 

▪
C

yn
th

ia
na

 (O
rig

in
al

 n
am

e 
of

 D
al

la
s.

)

U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 1

00
 o

f 1
36



6
8

79
1 

M
ai

n 
St

re
et

: M
ar

ke
t A

na
ly

si
s 

| D
RA

FT

Th
e 

C
ity

 s
ho

ul
d 

ta
ke

 a
 

bi
g-

pi
ct

ur
e 

an
d 

lo
ng

-r
un

 v
ie

w
 o

f i
ts

 re
tu

rn
 o

n 
in

ve
st

m
en

t. 
 

Ad
di

tio
na

l c
ity

 in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 m
ay

 b
e 

re
qu

ire
d 

in
 th

e 
ne

ar
 te

rm
. 

A 
lo

ng
-t

er
m

 v
ie

w
 re

co
gn

iz
es

 th
at

 b
en

ef
its

 c
an

 in
cl

ud
e 

re
in

ve
st

m
en

t i
n 

m
an

y 
do

w
nt

ow
n 

pr
op

er
tie

s,
 m

or
e 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t, 

m
or

e 
vi

si
to

rs
 a

nd
 T

O
T 

ta
x,

 m
or

e 
vi

ta
lit

y 
do

w
nt

ow
n,

 e
tc

. 

U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 1

01
 o

f 1
36



6
9

79
1 

M
ai

n 
St

re
et

: M
ar

ke
t A

na
ly

si
s 

| D
RA

FT

Th
e 

C
ity

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 p

re
pa

re
d 

to
 u

se
 v

ar
io

us
 in

ce
nt

iv
es

 a
nd

 to
ol

s 
in

 o
rd

er
 to

 a
tt

ra
ct

 d
ev

el
op

er
s 

an
d 

m
ak

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t f
ea

si
bl

e.
 

In
cl

ud
in

g 
th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g:

•
G

et
tin

g 
re

ad
y:

 C
om

m
un

ity
 s

ur
ve

ys
 a

nd
 s

up
po

rt
, s

ite
 m

as
si

ng
 s

tu
dy

, m
ar

ke
t a

na
ly

si
s,

 o
ut

re
ac

h.
 

•
Zo

ni
ng

 th
at

 a
llo

w
s 

th
e 

de
si

re
d 

us
es

.

•
Id

en
tif

yi
ng

 m
ul

tip
le

 p
ie

ce
s 

of
 th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t p
uz

zl
e,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
de

ve
lo

pe
rs

, i
nv

es
to

rs
 w

ith
 p

at
ie

nt
 c

ap
ita

l, 
an

d 
po

te
nt

ia
lly

 h
ot

el
 m

an
ag

er
s,

 re
st

au
ra

nt
eu

rs
, e

tc
.  

 

•
At

tr
ac

tin
g 

in
no

va
tiv

e 
ca

pi
ta

l s
ou

rc
es

 s
uc

h 
as

 p
hi

la
nt

hr
op

ie
s,

 C
D

FI
s,

 c
ro

w
d 

fu
nd

in
g,

 a
nd

 im
pa

ct
 in

ve
st

or
s

•
La

nd
 v

al
ue

 w
rit

e 
do

w
n

•
En

te
rp

ris
e 

Zo
ne

 (a
lre

ad
y 

in
 p

la
ce

)

•
Ve

rt
ic

al
 H

ou
si

ng
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t Z

on
e 

•
In

ve
st

in
g 

in
 d

ow
nt

ow
n 

si
de

w
al

k 
an

d 
in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 th
at

 a
re

 c
on

si
st

en
t w

ith
 e

xi
st

in
g 

pl
an

s

•
Im

pa
ct

 fe
e 

de
fe

rr
al

s,
 re

du
ct

io
ns

, c
re

di
ts

, o
r w

ai
ve

rs
 

•
TL

T 
de

di
ca

tio
ns

•
C

PA
C

E 
 

•
C

D
FI

s

•
Ph

ila
nt

hr
op

ie
s 

su
ch

 a
s 

O
C

F 
an

d 
th

e 
Fo

rd
 F

am
ily

 fo
un

da
tio

n

•
En

su
rin

g 
th

at
 th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t d
oe

s 
no

t t
rig

ge
r p

re
va

ili
ng

 w
ag

e 
ra

te
s

H
ow

ev
er

, t
he

 C
ity

 w
ill

 n
ee

d 
to

 b
e 

co
gn

iz
an

t o
f t

he
 $

75
0,

00
0 

ca
p 

on
 p

ub
lic

 in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 b
ef

or
e 

pr
ev

ai
lin

g 
w

ag
e 

ra
te

s 
ar

e 
tr

ig
ge

re
d.

 

U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 1

02
 o

f 1
36



7
0

79
1 

M
ai

n 
St

re
et

: M
ar

ke
t A

na
ly

si
s 

| D
RA

FT

Th
e 

C
ity

 s
ho

ul
d 

co
m

bi
ne

 re
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f 7

91
 M

ai
n 

St
re

et
 w

ith
 

ot
he

r e
ffo

rt
s 

th
at

 c
an

 e
nc

ou
ra

ge
 o

ng
oi

ng
 re

vi
ta

liz
at

io
n 

an
d 

re
in

ve
st

m
en

t t
hr

ou
gh

ou
t D

ow
nt

ow
n 

D
al

la
s.

•
C

on
tin

ui
ng

 to
 a

tt
ra

ct
 d

es
ira

bl
e 

bu
si

ne
ss

es
 to

 d
ow

nt
ow

n 
– 

re
st

au
ra

nt
s,

 s
m

al
l 

ve
nd

or
 m

al
l, 

bo
ok

st
or

e,
 g

ro
ce

ry
 s

to
re

, c
lo

th
es

, e
tc

.
•

M
ak

in
g 

do
w

nt
ow

n 
m

or
e 

ki
d-

 a
nd

 fa
m

ily
-f

rie
nd

ly
, w

hi
ch

 m
an

y 
pa

rt
ic

ip
an

ts
 in

 th
e 

on
lin

e 
su

rv
ey

 s
ee

 a
s 

a 
ke

y 
sh

or
tc

om
in

g 
fo

r d
ow

nt
ow

n.
  

•
Ev

al
ua

tin
g 

w
ay

s 
to

 m
ak

e 
th

e 
C

ou
rt

ho
us

e 
Sq

ua
re

—
in

cl
ud

in
g 

th
e 

la
nd

sc
ap

ed
 a

nd
 

ha
rd

sc
ap

ed
 a

re
as

—
m

or
e 

w
el

co
m

in
g 

an
d 

ac
tiv

e.
 T

hi
s 

co
ul

d 
in

cl
ud

e 
ad

di
ng

 p
la

ce
s 

to
 s

it,
 d

in
e,

 p
la

y 
ga

m
es

 (e
.g

., 
ch

es
s,

 b
oc

ce
, h

or
se

sh
oe

s,
 c

or
nh

ol
e)

, f
in

d 
sh

ad
e,

 o
r a

 
w

at
er

 fe
at

ur
e.

 T
he

 s
qu

ar
e 

is
 a

 lo
ve

ly
 a

nd
 tr

em
en

do
us

 a
ss

et
, b

ut
 it

 d
oe

s 
no

t p
ro

vi
de

 
th

e 
da

y-
to

-d
ay

 u
se

ab
ili

ty
 o

f d
ow

nt
ow

n 
pa

rk
s 

su
ch

 a
s 

M
ai

n 
St

re
et

 P
ar

k 
in

 
M

on
m

ou
th

. W
e 

re
co

gn
iz

e 
th

at
 m

od
ify

in
g 

th
e 

sq
ua

re
 c

ou
ld

 b
e 

co
nt

ro
ve

rs
ia

l a
nd

 
co

ul
d 

no
t h

ap
pe

n 
w

ith
ou

t s
tr

on
g 

su
pp

or
t f

ro
m

 th
e 

C
ou

nt
y.

  
•

U
si

ng
 n

ew
 te

na
nt

s 
to

 fi
ll 

ex
is

tin
g 

st
or

ef
ro

nt
s 

an
d 

dr
iv

e 
bu

ild
in

g 
re

no
va

tio
ns

 a
nd

 
up

gr
ad

es
. 

•
Ta

ki
ng

 a
dv

an
ta

ge
 o

f t
he

 H
is

to
ric

 T
ax

 C
re

di
ts

 th
at

 a
re

 n
ow

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
to

 p
ro

pe
rt

y 
ow

ne
rs

 b
ec

au
se

 o
f t

he
 h

is
to

ric
 d

is
tr

ic
t d

es
ig

na
tio

n.
•

C
on

tin
ui

ng
 to

 u
se

 a
nd

 re
fin

e 
th

e 
St

or
ef

ro
nt

 im
pr

ov
em

en
t g

ra
nt

 p
ro

gr
am

. 

U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 1

03
 o

f 1
36



79
1 

M
ai

n 
St

re
et

H
ot

el
 a

nd
 H

ou
si

ng
 M

ar
ke

t A
na

ly
si

s 
D

ra
ft

Fo
ru

m
 P

la
ce

m
ak

in
g

LR
S 

Ar
ch

ite
ct

ur
e

Et
ho

s 
H

os
pi

ta
lit

y 
PB

S 
En

gi
ne

er
in

g

D
R

A
FT

U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 1

04
 o

f 1
36



A
pp

en
di

ce
s

U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 1

05
 o

f 1
36



7
3

79
1 

M
ai

n 
St

re
et

: M
ar

ke
t A

na
ly

si
s 

| D
RA

FT

D
al

la
s 

ha
s 

a 
la

rg
e 

sh
ar

e 
of

 m
ed

ia
n 

an
d 

hi
gh

er
 

in
co

m
e 

ho
us

eh
ol

ds
. 

So
ur

ce
: S

oc
ia

l E
xp

lo
re

r, 
Fo

ru
m

 P
la

ce
m

ak
in

g.
 

H
ou

se
ho

ld
 In

co
m

e 
C

at
eg

or
ie

s 
in

 D
al

la
s 

an
d 

C
om

pa
ris

on
 C

iti
es

W
as

co
 C

ty

D
al

la
s

M
on

m
ou

th
In

de
pe

n
N

ew
be

rg
M

cM
in

n
C

an
by

Si
lv

er
to

n
Al

ba
ny

Th
e 

D
al

le
s

de
nc

e
vi

lle
   L

es
s 

th
an

 $
25

,0
00

18
%

26
%

14
%

12
%

19
%

16
%

17
%

14
%

19
%

   $
25

,0
00

 to
 $

49
,9

99
21

%
15

%
20

%
14

%
20

%
11

%
20

%
21

%
21

%

   $
50

,0
00

 to
 $

74
,9

99
16

%
19

%
17

%
19

%
18

%
17

%
14

%
19

%
20

%

   $
75

,0
00

 to
 $

99
,9

99
13

%
14

%
19

%
13

%
13

%
12

%
15

%
16

%
15

%

   $
10

0,
00

0 
or

 M
or

e
32

%
26

%
29

%
43

%
31

%
44

%
35

%
30

%
25

%

Po
lk

 C
ou

nt
y

Ya
m

hi
ll 

C
ou

nt
y

W
ill

am
et

te
 V

al
le

y

U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 1

06
 o

f 1
36



7
4

79
1 

M
ai

n 
St

re
et

: M
ar

ke
t A

na
ly

si
s 

| D
RA

FT

Th
e 

si
te

 is
 lo

ca
te

d 
in

 D
al

la
s’

 E
nt

er
pr

is
e 

Zo
ne

.
Th

e 
si

te
 is

 in
 a

n 
En

te
rp

ris
e 

Zo
ne

 a
nd

 
th

er
ef

or
e 

a 
ho

te
l c

ou
ld

 b
e 

pa
rt

ia
lly

 e
xe

m
pt

 
fr

om
 p

ro
pe

rt
y 

ta
xe

s 
fo

r t
hr

ee
 to

 fi
ve

 y
ea

rs
.  

Be
ca

us
e 

th
e 

si
te

 is
 lo

ca
te

d 
in

 D
al

la
s’

 
en

te
rp

ris
e 

zo
ne

, a
 n

ew
 h

ot
el

 a
t t

he
 s

ite
 w

ou
ld

 
be

 e
lig

ib
le

 fo
r a

 th
re

e-
ye

ar
 p

ro
pe

rt
y 

ta
x 

ab
at

em
en

t. 
A 

ne
w

 h
ot

el
 c

ou
ld

 a
ls

o 
pe

tit
io

n 
fo

r a
 fi

ve
-y

ea
r a

ba
te

m
en

t, 
th

ou
gh

 th
is

 w
ou

ld
 

ha
ve

 to
 b

e 
ap

pr
ov

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
C

ity
. 

H
ot

el
s 

ar
e 

el
ig

ib
le

 in
 s

om
e 

or
 a

ll 
of

 4
7 

of
 th

e 
76

 s
ta

te
w

id
e 

zo
ne

s.
 A

cc
or

di
ng

 to
 th

e 
St

at
e,

 
ho

te
ls

 a
re

 e
lig

ib
le

 in
 D

al
la

s’
 e

nt
er

pr
is

e 
zo

ne
. 

In
 o

rd
er

 to
 q

ua
lif

y 
fo

r t
he

 e
nt

er
pr

is
e 

zo
ne

, 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 m

us
t c

re
at

e 
jo

bs
 a

nd
 in

ve
st

 a
t l

ea
st

 
$5

0,
00

0.
 

A 
ho

us
in

g/
m

ix
ed

-u
se

 p
ro

je
ct

 li
ke

ly
 w

ou
ld

 n
ot

 
be

 e
lig

ib
le

 fo
r t

ax
 a

ba
te

m
en

t v
ia

 a
n 

en
te

rp
ris

e 
zo

ne
. 

U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 1

07
 o

f 1
36



 

 
4 4 1 2  S  C O R B E T T  A V E N U E ,  P O R T L A N D ,  O R  9 7 2 3 9    5 0 3 . 2 4 8 . 1 9 3 9  M A I N    8 6 6 . 7 2 7 . 0 1 4 0  F A X    P B S U S A . C O M  

Memorandum 

DATE: October 25, 2024 

TO: Brian Vanneman—Forum Placemaking 

FROM: Scott Shumaker—PBS Engineering and Environmental LLC 

PROJECT: 74465.000, Dallas 791 Main Street  

REGARDING: Site Development Feasibility Review 
  

 
GENERAL SITE HISTORY 

 The Site is in the downtown business district of Dallas, Oregon, and has been commercially developed 
since the late 1800s. Based on historical records, the Site was occupied by numerous commercial 
businesses from the late 1880s through the 1980s, including various retail stores, a billiards and saloon 
hall, a barber, a bank, a restaurant, and various offices. Based on a Phase 1 Environmental Site Assessment 
(ESA) performed by SLR in 2022, the 1950 Sanborn Fire Insurance Map depicted a gas pump in the north-
northeast portion of the Site. See Figure 1 and Appendix F. 

 
Figure 1. 1950 Sanborn Fire Insurance Map. 

 The most recent active use of the Site was as a Bank of America branch office that was built in 1986. The 
bank was vacated in 2020, and the site was cleared in July 2024. The bank building, concrete slab, and 
aboveground features were removed from the site. The asphalt pavement was left intact.  

 

U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 1

08
 o

f 1
36



Brian Vanneman—Forum Placemaking 
Site Development Feasibility Review  
October 25, 2024 
Page 2 
 
 

74465.000 

GEOLOGY AND HYDROGEOLOGY 

 The near-surface geology in the Site vicinity is characterized by the presence of Pleistocene terrace 
gravels, described as weathered gravels in lower terraces bordering alluvium. 

 Shallow groundwater is present in the Site vicinity. The estimated local groundwater flow direction is toward 
the northeast and Rickreall Creek. In 2018, Arcadis gauged three monitoring wells at the Site and reported 
depth to groundwater between 8.5 and 15 feet below ground surface (bgs). Depth to water measurements by 
Apex in March and September 2020 ranged between 8.88 and 12.60 feet bgs. 

 
ENVIRONMENTAL 

 The site received a No Further Action (NFA) conditional determination from the Oregon Department of 
Environmental Quality (DEQ), dated May 19, 2023. See Appendix A for a copy of the determination letter. 

o Phase II ESA studies characterized the site for soil contamination in 2016 and 2018. The site was 
added to DEQ’s Leaking Underground Storage Tank (LUST) database in 2018 (LUST #27-18-1348). 

o Additional site investigations occurred in 2020. Petroleum hydrocarbons and ethylbenzene, both 
occurring in petroleum products, were found in several areas of the Site in the soil and 
groundwater that will be subject to the requirements of a Contaminated Media Management Plan 
(CMMP). See Figure 2 for the locations. Note that soil gas results collected beneath the 
demolished Bank of America building did not exceed occupational vapor intrusion limits. 

 
Figure 2. Apex Site Map. 
 

U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 1

09
 o

f 1
36



Brian Vanneman—Forum Placemaking 
Site Development Feasibility Review  
October 25, 2024 
Page 3 
 
 

74465.000 

 The Site is subject to a CMMP prepared by Apex, dated July 19, 2022. See Appendix B for a copy of 
the CMMP. 

 Development of ground-floor residential housing is restricted, per DEQ’s conditional NFA. If the owner 
elects, the land use restrictions may be removed based on additional evaluation specific to the proposed 
end use. This would entail further evaluation of vapor intrusion characterizations of the area to be 
developed to demonstrate if the current conditions are acceptable.   

-or- 

 The owner could provide mitigation that would allow ground-floor residential housing by providing a 
vapor removal system.  

 Is the owner protected from risk for environmental harm caused during construction or building 
occupancy, if the owner follows the CMMP? There are no guaranteed risk protections provided by the 
State DEQ. The site was cleaned up to the standards of the state and fully documented. If petroleum 
contamination is encountered, the owner would be responsible for disposal. Even though it is below cleanup 
levels, petroleum-contaminated soil would need to be taken to the landfill—soil may not be taken off site 
and used as general fill. The developer should include reasonable costs for some soil management in the 
development budget. In our experience this would not be an obstacle to redevelopment assuming that the 
redevelopment does not include underground parking or storage which would significantly increase costs for 
soil disposal and potential groundwater mitigation. 

 
STREETS AND FRONTAGES 

 The eastern site frontage on Main Street was improved in 2013 with parallel street parking. See 
Appendix C for a typical plan and section of the improved frontage. 

 The southern site frontage on SE Mill Street is expected to accommodate new sidewalk improvements 
with angled or parallel parking like the frontage improvements constructed by the City of Dallas (City) in 
2015 to the south side of SE Mill Street. See Appendix D for an example of these improvements. Note the 
City will not want to use permeable concrete as was constructed on the south side.  

The current SE Mill Street right-of-way (ROW) width is 80 feet. If the sidewalk is to be widened to match 
the south side (12.5 feet), the resulting curb-to-curb width would be 55 feet. Typical minimum curb-to-
curb width for 45-degree two-way parking with a 2-foot bumper overhang would be 55 feet and allows 
for a 24-foot-wide drive aisle with angled parking. This width may not meet local expectations for driving 
aisle spacing, with a specific example of Court Street at 80-foot ROW identified as “too narrow” by some 
city residents. An alternative idea is to provide a wider sidewalk with parallel parking on the north side of 
the street, which would leave ample room for driving lanes.  

 To the west is a public alleyway. Although no improvements are required, PBS anticipates the new owner 
may wish to widen this alley to provide enhanced access to the northern portion of the site. The City is 
supportive of this idea. The widened alley area would either be in a new access easement or a dedicated 
ROW; this needs to be negotiated with the City. 

 The northeastern portion of the site faces an existing building with a mural, and the northwestern portion 
of the site is a surface parking lot. 

 
UTILITIES 
The site is served by all basic utilities required for redevelopment. See the utility summaries and Figures 3 
through 6 below.  

U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 1

10
 o

f 1
36



Brian Vanneman—Forum Placemaking 
Site Development Feasibility Review  
October 25, 2024 
Page 4 
 
 

74465.000 

 
Figure 3. Existing City utilities. 
 
Power 

 Electric service is provided by Pacific Power (PacifiCorp). Existing overhead power is available from SE Mill 
Street. The high-voltage power lines are approximately 30 to 35 feet above the sidewalk grade. The City 
does not currently have plans to underground the overhead lines. 

 
Franchise Utilities 

 Existing overhead fiber and telecommunication are available from SE Mill Street and are approximately 
20 feet above the sidewalk. Willamette Valley Fiber has indicated to the City that they may be able to 
relocate these lines underground during future construction.  

 
Stormwater 

 The existing storm main (depicted in black in Figure 4) is in SE Mill Street. The main is 8-inch polyvinyl 
chloride (PVC) and service lateral locations are unknown. See Appendix E for the stormwater treatment 
requirements applicable at the time of this report. Currently, only flow control is specified. The 
requirements should be confirmed with the City at the time of development. 

 

U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 1

11
 o

f 1
36



Brian Vanneman—Forum Placemaking 
Site Development Feasibility Review  
October 25, 2024 
Page 5 
 
 

74465.000 

 
Figure 4. Existing storm. 
 
Sanitary Sewer 

 The existing sewer main (depicted in green in Figure 5) is in SE Mill Street and the public alleyway to the 
west. The main is 6 inches in diameter and the service lateral sizes are unknown. 

 

U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 1

12
 o

f 1
36



Brian Vanneman—Forum Placemaking 
Site Development Feasibility Review  
October 25, 2024 
Page 6 
 
 

74465.000 

 
Figure 5. Existing sanitary sewer. 
 
Water 

 Existing water mains (depicted in blue in Figure 6) are located in SE Mill and Main Streets. Multiple service 
laterals serve the site; the size is unknown but thought to be ¾" service lines.  

 

U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 1

13
 o

f 1
36



Brian Vanneman—Forum Placemaking 
Site Development Feasibility Review  
October 25, 2024 
Page 7 
 
 

74465.000 

 
Figure 6. Existing water. 
 
 
Attachments: Appendix A: 2023 DEQ NFA 

Appendix B: 2022 APEX CMMP 
Appendix C: 2013 Main Street Plan 
Appendix D: 2015 Mill Street Plans 
Appendix E: 2024 Storm Design Manual 
Appendix F: 1884–1950 Sanborn Fire Insurance Maps  
 

 
sas:tl 
 

U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 1

14
 o

f 1
36



CITY OF DALLAS 
DALLAS DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION 

URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY 
STAFF REPORT 

MEETING DATE:  November 4, 2024 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 
TOPIC: Building Improvement Grant – 144 SW Washington Street 

PREPARED BY: Tyler Ferrari 

APPROVED BY: 

ATTACHMENTS: A – Application Materials 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Staff recommends the Urban Renewal Agency approve the grant application as submitted 

BACKGROUND: 
The Building Improvement Grant program was created by the Urban Renewal Agency in early 
2021. The City has received an application from Gather Food Park, the owner of the property. 

The applicant proposes replacing the current roof with a new roof on the building to meet the 
new uses inside of the building.  

The approval criteria for a building improvement grant are: 

1. The applicant must be the property owner or a tenant with permission from the owner.
2. No outstanding bills, fines, or other payments associated with the applicant. This includes

any bills, fines or other payments associated with a property owned or managed by the
applicant that is not part of the application.

3. The building and its tenants shall have all necessary permits to operate in the designated
space.

4. The project must meet all state and local building codes and zoning requirements.
5. Projects must be located in the Dallas Urban Renewal Area and must result in permanent

improvements to commercial buildings. Residential uses may exist on floors above the
street level, but residential uses on the street level are not eligible.

6. The project and property are not tax exempt.

4

Brian Latta, City Manager

U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 1

15
 o

f 1
36



Staff's Analysis 
The applicant is the owner of the property. All taxes and bills to the city are current. The 
applicant will be required to obtain the necessary permits. The project is within the Downtown 
Urban Renewal District and will result in a permanent improvement to a commercial building. 
The projects and property are privately owned and are not tax exempt. 

The application satisfies all of the approval criteria. 

Staff recommends approval up to the amount of $8,100.00 as requested by the applicant. 

SUMMARY TIMELINE: 
9/12/2024 – Application received 
11/4/2024 – Agency to consider Building Improvement Grant request. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
$8,100.00, if approved. 

RECOMMENDED MOTION: 
I move to approve the Building Improvement Grant file number 2024-05 Gather Food Park at 
144 Washington Street in an amount up to $8,100.00, and authorize the city manager to prepare 
the grant agreement. 

U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 1

16
 o

f 1
36



Survey Form Response

Survey Name: Survey Form Response

1. Business Name or Building Address (If Vacant)

144 SW Washington St Dallas OR 97338

2. Please enter your contact information

Name: Jaiden Novasio , Title: 
Roles: Main Contact
Contact Details: info@gatherfoodpark.com

3. Project Address

144 SW Washington St Dallas, OR 97338

4. Mailing Address (If Different)

PO Box 1000 Dallas, OR 97338

5. Who is the Applicant?

Owner

6. If answered "tenant" above, please provide the building owner's contact information

7. If answered "tenant" above, please provide the building owner's consent to apply for this project

U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 1

17
 o

f 1
36



8. Estimated Project Start Date

2024-10-28

9. Estimated Project End Date

2024-11-04

10. Please provide a general description of the overall project

Completely new roof replacement. 

11. Will you be using a contractor for this project?

Yes

12. If yes to the above, please input the contractor's contact information.

Name: Madera Quality Construction, Title: 
Contact Details: MaderaQualityConstruction@gmail.com

13. Please attach the following: 1) Photo(s) of the proposed project area 2) Estimates for items and contractors 
3) A drawing/sketch/illustration of the proposed improvement - PLEASE PLACE ALL ATTACHMENTS INTO 
ONE PDF FILE. MISSING ATTACHMENTS WILL RESULT IN THE DELAY OF YOUR APPLICATION

Estimate, Photo of Project Area and Rough Sketch Edit of Proposed Improvement.  .pdf

14. Total Project Cost

16,200 USD

U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 1

18
 o

f 1
36

https://bludot-community-production.s3.amazonaws.com/media/private/attachments/cca2576d-e4a9-4461-884d-fcd7d967b083.pdf?X-Amz-Algorithm=AWS4-HMAC-SHA256&X-Amz-Credential=AKIA23NQO3WSVODG5PYM%2F20240912%2Fus-west-2%2Fs3%2Faws4_request&X-Amz-Date=20240912T181432Z&X-Amz-Expires=3600&X-Amz-SignedHeaders=host&X-Amz-Signature=4e01df68073f79ea7f9415f0293fb3fb6f7fd99df36a15fcd0dffa2ebec79fc2


15. Total Amount Requested (Max of $15,000)

8,100 USD

16. By typing your full name below, you agree that the information provided is accurate and correct to the best 
of my knowledge

Jaiden Novasio

U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 1

19
 o

f 1
36



U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 1

20
 o

f 1
36



U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 1

21
 o

f 1
36



U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 1

22
 o

f 1
36



CITY OF DALLAS 
DALLAS DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION 

URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY 
STAFF REPORT 

MEETING DATE:  November 4, 2024 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 
TOPIC: Building Improvement Grant – 904 Main Street 

PREPARED BY: Tyler Ferrari 

APPROVED BY: 

ATTACHMENTS: A – Application Materials 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Staff recommends the Urban Renewal Agency approve the grant application as submitted 

BACKGROUND: 
The Building Improvement Grant program was created by the Urban Renewal Agency in early 
2021. The City has received an application from Marlene Cox, the owner of the property. 

The applicant proposes conducting a seismic retrofit of the building to meet current seismic 
standards so that the second floor of the building can be safely occupied.  

The applicant previously received a Building Improvement Grant in 2021 in the amount of 
$50,000 for the first phase of this project, which included asbestos abatement, seismic bracing, 
roof repair, and masonry tuck pointing. This application is for the second phase of the project.  

The approval criteria for a building improvement grant are: 

1. The applicant must be the property owner or a tenant with permission from the owner.
2. No outstanding bills, fines, or other payments associated with the applicant. This includes

any bills, fines or other payments associated with a property owned or managed by the
applicant that is not part of the application.

3. The building and its tenants shall have all necessary permits to operate in the designated
space.

4. The project must meet all state and local building codes and zoning requirements.

5

Brian Latta, City Manager

U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 1

23
 o

f 1
36



5. Projects must be located in the Dallas Urban Renewal Area and must result in permanent 
improvements to commercial buildings. Residential uses may exist on floors above the 
street level, but residential uses on the street level are not eligible. 

6. The project and property are not tax exempt. 
 
Staff's Analysis 
The applicant is the owner of the property. All taxes and bills to the city are current. The 
applicant will be required to obtain the necessary permits. The project is within the Downtown 
Urban Renewal District and will result in a permanent improvement to a commercial building. 
The projects and property are privately owned and are not tax exempt. 
 
The building is currently vacant and has also been awarded an Oregon Main Street Revitalization 
Grant in the amount of $200,000 for restoration work once the seismic work is completed. 
 
The application satisfies all of the approval criteria. 
 
Staff recommends approval up to the amount of $14,999.00 as requested by the applicant. 
 
SUMMARY TIMELINE: 
9/16/2024 – Application received 
11/4/2024 – Agency to consider Building Improvement Grant request. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$14,999.00, if approved. 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION: 
I move to approve the Building Improvement Grant file number 2024-05 Gather Food Park at 
144 Washington Street in an amount up to $14,999.00, and authorize the city manager to prepare 
the grant agreement. 

U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 1

24
 o

f 1
36



Survey Form Response

Survey Name: Survey Form Response

1. Business Name or Building Address (If Vacant)

904 Main/115 Court St, Dallas, oregon

2. Please enter your contact information

Name: Penny Marlene Cox, Title: owner
Roles: Main Contact
Contact Details: latitudeone@hotmail.com, 503 917 9243

Name: Michael Cox, Title: owner
Roles: Main Contact
Contact Details: latitudeone@hotmail.com, 503 420 9936

3. Project Address

904 Main St., Dallas, Oregon

4. Mailing Address (If Different)

11140 Orrs corner Rd., Rickreall, Oregon

5. Who is the Applicant?

Owner

6. If answered "tenant" above, please provide the building owner's contact information

7. If answered "tenant" above, please provide the building owner's consent to apply for this project

U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 1

25
 o

f 1
36



8. Estimated Project Start Date

2024-10-28

9. Estimated Project End Date

2024-12-23

10. Please provide a general description of the overall project

Seismic upgrade to second story, approximately 5,000 sq. ft.

11. Will you be using a contractor for this project?

Yes

12. If yes to the above, please input the contractor's contact information.

Name: Guillermo Wrghtman, Optimum Seismic, Title: client relations manager
Contact Details: gwightman@optimumseismic.com,   

13. Please attach the following: 1) Photo(s) of the proposed project area 2) Estimates for items and contractors 
3) A drawing/sketch/illustration of the proposed improvement - PLEASE PLACE ALL ATTACHMENTS INTO 
ONE PDF FILE. MISSING ATTACHMENTS WILL RESULT IN THE DELAY OF YOUR APPLICATION

904 Main St- Construction Proposal - 08-26-2024.pdf

14. Total Project Cost

375,000 USD

U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 1

26
 o

f 1
36

https://bludot-community-production.s3.amazonaws.com/media/private/attachments/6fb144a9-90a6-4d95-8e18-90e3560b9927.pdf?X-Amz-Algorithm=AWS4-HMAC-SHA256&X-Amz-Credential=AKIA23NQO3WSVODG5PYM%2F20240917%2Fus-west-2%2Fs3%2Faws4_request&X-Amz-Date=20240917T012727Z&X-Amz-Expires=3600&X-Amz-SignedHeaders=host&X-Amz-Signature=9bf72d6f542465e998d814bf21312df9ffe03d9933c56c8534667be7657674da


15. Total Amount Requested (Max of $15,000)

14,999 USD

16. By typing your full name below, you agree that the information provided is accurate and correct to the best 
of my knowledge

Penny Marlene Cox agrees that information is accurate and correct

U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 1

27
 o

f 1
36



Page 1 of 9 – CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT   Initials: ____ (Owner) ____ (Contractor) 
 
 
 

* 

 
 

Oregon Contractors License # 
240995 

 5508 S. Santa Fe Avenue 
Vernon, CA 90058 
T: (323) OPTIMUM (678-4686) 
F: (323) 605-0309 
optimumseismic.com 

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT 
 
 This Construction Contract between Owner and Contractor (the “Contract”) is made as of 
August ____, 2024 (the “Effective Date”), by and between Marlene Cox, trustee of the PMC Living 
Trust (“Owner”) and Optimum Seismic, Inc., a California Corporation (“Contractor”), for the 
following project (the “Project”).  
 
 Owner: Marlene Cox, Trustee  Contractor: Optimum Seismic, Inc. 
    PMC Living Trust 
 Address: 11140 Orrs Corner Rd  Address: 5508 S. Santa Fe Ave 
      Rickreall, OR 97271       Vernon, CA 90058 
 
 In consideration for the mutual promises contained in this Contract, Owner and Contractor 
(each a “Party” and collectively, the “Parties”) agree as follows:  
 

1. Description of Work and Project.  

1.1. The Contract. The “Contract Documents” form the “Contract” and consist of: (1) this 
Contract; (2) Exhibit A – Plans; (3) any amendments issued after the Effective Date; and (4) written 
orders for changes and extra work signed by Owner.  
 

Description of Work. Contractor will furnish all work, labor, tools, equipment, materials, 
supervision, scheduling, coordination, and contract administration necessary to construct 
and complete in a good, expeditious, and workmanlike manner the seismic improvements 
described in the Plans attached as Exhibit A (the “Work”) to the Project, which exhibit is 
incorporated in the Contract. The Project includes seismic improvements to an existing un-
reinforced masonry building consisting of two stories located at 904 Main St, Dallas, OR 
97338. Owner represents that it owns, leases, or otherwise has the legal right to authorize 
Contractor to perform the Work. 

1.1.1. Structural observations and all engineering support are included in the Contract Price, 
as laid out in Sections 2.1 and 2.2 of this Contract.  

1.1.2. Contractor will paint all new installations and new stucco finishes to match the 
existing color of the building to the closest possible color match. Structural observations 
and all engineering support are included in the Contract Price.  

 
1.2. Plans. The Work will be constructed according to plan sets approved by the City of 

Dallas, Oregon (“City”), and subject to changes due to field conditions discovered during 

U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 1

28
 o

f 1
36



Page 2 of 9 – CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT   Initials: ____ (Owner) ____ (Contractor) 
 
 
 

Construction. Contractor may make changes to plans at its sole discretion, if necessary, as long as 
such changes are approved by the Engineer of Record and comply with requirements of the 
applicable building codes.  

 
1.3.  Tenant Habitability Plan. If Owner requests, Contractor will assist Owner to prepare 

a Tenant Habitability Plan, but Contractor assumes no liability regarding the Tenant Habitability 
Plan. Owner acknowledges that to the extent Contractor provides any assistance related to tenant 
coordination, that assistance is provided as a courtesy and Contractor assumes no responsibility for 
property management or tenant management.  

 
2. Contract Price and Payment.  

 
2.1. Contract Price. The Contract Price is a fixed sum for the Work to be performed under 

this Contract, totaling $375,000.00 (the “Contract Price”), which may be increased or decreased by 
Change Orders signed by Owner and Contractor.  

 
2.2. Payment. Owner shall make progress payments towards the Contract Price on the 

dates and in the amounts shown:  
 
Payment 1 - Contract Execution  $35,000.00 

Payment 2 - Week 1 of Construction  $55,000.00 

Payment 3 - Week 2 of Construction     $55,000.00 
Payment 4 - Week 3 of Construction    $55,000.00 

Payment 5 - Week 4 of Construction  $55,000.00 

Payment 6 - Week 5 of Construction  $55,000.00 

Payment 7 - Week 6 of Construction  $55,000.00 

Payment 8 - City’s Signoff of Structural Work  $10,000.00 

 
Payments are due upon Owner’s receipt of Contractor’s invoice. Owner shall pay a 1.5% 

monthly service charge  for any invoice not paid within 14 days. If the City’s signoff on structural 
work (progress payment No. 8) is delayed due to insufficient installation of gas shut-off valves or 
other compliance issues unrelated to Contractor’s Work, then payment of the full contract balance 
will become due within ten (10) days after completion of structural work per Exhibit A. 

 
2.3. Loans and Financing. Owner acknowledges and agrees that its obtaining a loan for a 

portion or all of the Contract Price is not a condition precedent to payments due under this Contract, 
and that Contractor is not providing financing for the Project, or in any manner assisting Owner to 
obtain a loan, or referring Owner to any person who may loan or arrange a loan for all or a portion 
of the Contract Price.  

 
3. Exclusions from Contract Price.  

 
3.1. Taxes and Assessments. Owner is responsible for paying all taxes, fees, assessments, 

and charges required by public agencies, including without limitation any increase in assessed value 

U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 1

29
 o

f 1
36



Page 3 of 9 – CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT   Initials: ____ (Owner) ____ (Contractor) 
 
 
 

based on the Work. All taxes incurred by Contractor, including without limitation commercial 
activity taxes, building or operating permits, land use fees or assessments, and excise taxes, are 
additional expenses that Owner will reimburse to Contractor outside of the Contract Price.  

 
3.2. Permits. Unless otherwise specifically provided in the Contract, Contractor will 

obtain all building permits, and Owner will pay Contractor, in addition to the Contract Price, for all 
required building permits and all inspection fees for inspections required by permitting agencies.  

 
3.3. Dry Rot, Structural, and Termite Damage. Any repairs or changes required due to dry 

rot, termite damage, or preexisting structural damage discovered during or after demolition are 
excluded from the Contract Price and will entitle Contractor to a Change Order as allowed in Section 
8.  

 
3.4. Seismic Gas Shut-Off Valve. The expense to provide and install a seismic gas shut-

off valve is excluded from the Work and the Contract Price. Owner is responsible for providing and 
installing a seismic gas shut-off valve, if required. Owner acknowledges that delay in installing a 
required seismic gas shut-off valve may delay final City approval and completion of the Work.  

 
3.5. Hazardous Materials.  Hazardous Materials are excluded from the scope of the Work 

and the Contract Price, as outlined in Section 9.  
 
4. Commencement and Completion.  
 

4.1. Start Date. Contractor will begin work on a date to be agreed on by Contractor and 
Owner in writing, but no later than October 15, 2024.  

 
4.2. Approximate Completion Date. Contractor will perform Work diligently to 

completion and, in all events, will substantially complete the Work within ten (10) weeks after 
commencement, subject to permissible delays as described in Section 7, below.  

 
5. Standards. The seismic improvements to be performed will comply with the minimum 
standards for mitigating life safety hazards that may result from the effects on existing unreinforced 
masonry buildings as defined by the applicable City or state building codes. The purpose of these 
improvements is to comply with the building codes and to reduce the risk of death or injury from a 
seismic event, but not necessarily to prevent all loss of life, injury, or seismic-related damage. 
Contractor does not warrant or guarantee the overall reduction in the risk of seismic-caused damage 
to the Project from a seismic event. Performance of the Work will require Contractor to open 
trenches, which will remain open during a portion of the Work. Owner acknowledges that open 
trenches increase the risk of damage to a structure from an earthquake or seismic event while the 
trench is open.  
 
6. Right to Stop Work. Contractor may stop work on the Project if any amount due from Owner 
is not paid to Contractor when due under this Contract, including without limitation any payment for 
extra work. If such nonpayment occurs, Contractor may suspend the Work and keep the job idle until 
all outstanding payments are received. In such an event, Owner will be responsible for payment of 
Contractor's delay and remobilization costs associated with suspending the Work.  
 
7. Delays Beyond Contractor’s Control. Owner shall excuse Contractor for any delay in 

U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 1

30
 o

f 1
36



Page 4 of 9 – CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT   Initials: ____ (Owner) ____ (Contractor) 
 
 
 

completion of the Work caused by the following: 
 

(1) Acts of God, including but not limited to wind, rain, flood, storm, landslide, 
subsidence, and seismic event; 

(2) Acts of Owner or Owner’s agents, employees, or independent contractors; 
(3) Inclement weather; 
(4) Labor troubles, slow-downs, strikes, or union activity causing reduction in 

productivity;  
(5) Acts of public utilities or governmental, quasi-governmental, or public bodies, 

including without limitation inspectors or plan-checkers’ review and approval of plan 
revisions due to field conditions; 

(6) Changes requested by Owner; 
(7) Owner’s failure to make payments when due; 
(8) Owner’s failure to promptly process change orders; 
(9) Embargoes on materials; 
(10) Delays in transportation;  
(11) Unforeseen or differing site conditions, including but not limited to Hazardous 

Materials; or 
(12) Other causes beyond the reasonable control of Contractor, its employees, or its 

subcontractors.   
 
8. Change Orders. Any work requested or required to be performed that is outside the scope 
of the Work of this Contract will be performed only under a valid Change Order, which will adjust 
the Contract Price and the time to complete the Work. Any request by Owner for work outside of the 
scope of the Work must be made in writing by Owner to Contractor. If Owner fails to reject a change 
order request from Contractor within seven days, Owner will be deemed to have accepted the terms 
thereof. Any repairs or changes required due to dry rot, termite damage, or preexisting structural 
damages discovered during or after demolition are excluded from the Contract Price and will entitle 
Contractor to a Change Order for any additional or different Work arising from those conditions.  
 
9. Hazardous Materials Contractor shall, as required, hire hazardous materials testing 
subcontractors, and the cost of such will be directly reimbursed to Contractor immediately upon 
submission to Owner of an invoice from the hazardous materials testing subcontractor. If hazardous 
materials are identified, and abatement is required, Contractor will assist Owner in obtaining quotes 
from abatement contractors, and Owner shall select and hire one of those abatement contractors to 
perform required abatement work. Any delay in the time to complete the Work related to hazardous 
material testing or abatement will be considered a permissible delay as described in section 7 (Delay 
Beyond Contractor’s Control) above.  To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Owner shall 
indemnify and hold harmless the Contractor, Subcontractors, and agents and employees of any of 
them from and against claims, damages, losses, and expenses, including but not limited to attorney’s 
fees, arising out of or resulting from the presence, removal, and abatement of hazardous materials or 
substances in the Project if in fact the material or substance presents the risk of bodily injury or death, 
and has not been rendered harmless, provided that such claim, damage, loss, or expense is attributable 
to bodily injury, sickness, disease or death, or to injury to or destruction of tangible property (other 
than the Work itself), except to the extent that such damage, loss, or expense is due to the fault or 
negligence of the party seeking indemnity.  If, without negligence on the part of the Contractor, the 
Contractor is held liable by a government agency for the cost of remediation of a hazardous material 
or substance on the Project solely by reason of performing Work as required by the Contract 

U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 1

31
 o

f 1
36



Page 5 of 9 – CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT   Initials: ____ (Owner) ____ (Contractor) 
 
 
 

Documents, the Owner shall reimburse the Contractor for all cost and expense thereby incurred. 
 
10. Insurance.  
 

10.1. Contractor Insurance. Contractor maintains insurance on its operations with the 
following coverages: 

 
(1)  Worker’s compensation as required by law; 
 
(2)  Commercial general liability insurance covering all operations, with policy limits of 
at least $1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 in the aggregate; and 
 
(3) Automobile liability insurance, if using company vehicles to perform the Work, with 
policy limits of $1,000,000.00 in the aggregate for bodily injury and property damage.  

 
10.2. Property Insurance. Owner will purchase and maintain continuously through the 

duration of the Project property insurance in the amount of the Contract Price for the Work (as may 
be adjusted by Change Order) written on an All-Risk builder’s risk policy form covering at least fire, 
theft, vandalism, collapse, earthquake, flood, windstorm, falsework, and debris removal. Owner will 
identify Contractor as a named insured on the policy. 

 
10.3. Losses. If any portion of the Work is destroyed or damaged by any occurrence 

covered by any property insurance, Owner will pay Contractor for all Work in progress or completed 
as of the date of the occurrence, plus twenty-five percent (25%) for profit and overhead costs. At 
Owner’s option, this Contract may then be terminated under such circumstances, or the Work may 
be rebuilt with adjustments to the Contract Price, scope of Work, and schedule. Owner’s obligations 
under this Section are not limited by the insurance requirements set forth in this Contract.  
 

10.4. Subrogation Waiver. Owner and Contractor waive all rights against each other and 
any of their respective subcontractors, agents, or employees for damages caused by any covered peril 
or other causes of loss to the extent covered by the worker’s compensation, automobile, commercial 
general liability, or property insurance applicable to the Work, except such rights as they have to 
proceeds of such insurance policies. The applicable insurance policies will provide such waivers of 
subrogation by endorsement or otherwise.  

 
11. Progress Payments and Final Payment.  
 

11.1. Progress Payments. Progress payments are to be made weekly pursuant to Section 2.2, 
above. No partial payment may be considered acceptance or approval of any Work, nor a waiver of 
defects in the Work. 

 
11.2. Final Payment. When Contractor considers the Work to be complete, Contractor will 

notify Owner. Within fifteen (15) calendar days after receiving the notice, Owner will either accept 
the work or notify Contractor of Work yet to be performed under the Contract. Upon Owner’s 
acceptance of the Work, Owner will make final payment to Contractor of all amounts due to 
Contractor, including retainage, within seven (7) calendar days. 

 
11.3. Retainage. Owner, Contractor, and any first-tier subcontractor may withhold as 

U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 1

32
 o

f 1
36



Page 6 of 9 – CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT   Initials: ____ (Owner) ____ (Contractor) 
 
 
 

retainage from each progress payment an amount equal to not more than five percent (5%) of the 
Contract Price of the Work completed. Pursuant to ORS 701.435, Contractor reserves the right to 
submit to Owner and any lender, and Owner and the lender will accept, a surety bond in lieu of all 
or any portion of the retainage required under this Contract. 

 
11.4. Interest. Owner will pay interest at the rate of one percent (1%) per month on the final 

payment due to Contractor. Interest will commence eight (8) days after Contractor has completed 
and Owner has accepted the Work. Interest will run until the date when the full amount of the final 
payment is tendered to Contractor. If Owner does not accept the Work or does not notify of Work 
yet to be performed within the time allowed, interest will commence eight (8) days after the end of 
the fifteen (15) day period for Owner to review the Work.   

 
11.5. Contractor Paying Subcontractor. When Contractor pays a subcontractor in full, 

including the amount Contractor withheld as retained, Owner will pay Contractor, out of the amount 
that Owner withheld from Contractor as retainage, a sum equal to the amount of retainage that 
Contractor paid the subcontractor. Contractor will notify Owner when Contractor pays a 
subcontractor in full and Owner will, within fifteen (15) days after receiving the notice, pay 
Contractor the amount due. Interest on the amount due is at the rate of one percent (1%) per month, 
commencing fifteen (15) days after Owner receives notice of Contractor’s full payment to the 
subcontractor.  

 
12. Dispute Resolution. Upon one Party’s notification of a dispute to the other Party, Contractor 
and Owner will meet promptly and attempt to resolve the dispute. If unsuccessful, or if a meeting 
does not occur within fourteen (14) days after receipt of the notification of a dispute, then the Parties 
will follow the Early Neutral Evaluation or Mediation process in Section 12.1 prior to the initiation 
of any action or proceeding, whether in litigation or arbitration, as more particularly described below.  
 

12.1. Early Neutral Evaluation. Upon notification of a dispute before completion of the 
Work, Owner and Contractor will make a good faith effort to resolve the dispute through the 
following Early Neutral Evaluation process..  
 

12.1.1. Evaluator. The Parties will select a disinterested third party (“Evaluator”) with 
expertise in the design and construction of similar projects. Nothing disclosed by any Party nor any 
evaluation made by the Evaluator may be admitted in any subsequent arbitration or litigation. The 
Evaluator will be considered as a mediator and the Early Neutral Evaluation will be considered a 
mediation process governed by Oregon law, including the protection of mediation communications. 

 
12.1.2. Performance Claims. In all disputes concerning performance claims, the 

Evaluator will render an assessment of the dispute, which the Parties will use to structure a 
framework for settlement, or, at a minimum, to streamline the issues that will ultimately be settled, 
arbitrated, or litigated as set forth below. To facilitate resolution, each Party will prepare a position 
paper setting forth the material bases for its position. Each Party will also provide a short presentation 
before the Evaluator, which may be delivered in person or by teleconference or videoconference. 
The Evaluator will decide whether the other Party may attend a Party’s presentation, but the decision 
will apply equally to both Parties. After the presentations, the Evaluator will identify areas of 
agreement, forecast liabilities, and establish, if applicable, a range for liability and potential 
settlement.  

 

U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 1

33
 o

f 1
36



Page 7 of 9 – CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT   Initials: ____ (Owner) ____ (Contractor) 
 
 
 

12.1.3. Costs Associated with Early Neutral Evaluation. The Parties will equally share 
administrative costs and fees of the Evaluator for the Early Neutral Evaluation proceedings, but each 
Party will be responsible for its own expenses otherwise incurred. 

 
12.1.4. The Parties will not be required to participate in Early Neutral Evaluation for 

a period greater than thirty (30) calendar days, commencing from the date the Parties select Early 
Neutral Evaluation, unless otherwise agreed upon in writing by the Parties  

 
12.2. Mediation. Upon notification of a dispute occurring after completion of the Project, 

and as a condition precedent to any litigation (except for emergency relief or to foreclose a 
construction lien as required by law), all claims, counterclaims, disputes, and other matters in 
question between the Parties arising out of or relating to this Contract or breach of this Contract will 
first be submitted to non-binding mediation.  

 
12.2.1. Initiating Mediation. Either Party may initiate mediation by providing written 

notice to the other, together with a list of three proposed mediators within thirty (30) days of service 
of the notice of the dispute. The other Party may select one of the three proposed mediators. If the 
other Party fails to select one of the mediators, or otherwise participate in or pay for its share of the 
cost of the mediation, or if either Party fails or refuses to agree to one of the mediation dates suggested 
by the mediators, then either Party will be free to initiate litigation with respect to the dispute.  

 
12.2.2. Costs Associated with Mediation. Each Party will pay one-half of the fees and 

expenses of the mediator and any mediation service, and will bear its own attorney fees and expenses 
in connection with the mediation.  

 
13. Time of the Essence. All time limits stated in this Contract are of the essence, and failure to 
comply with them is a material breach of this Contract. Unless otherwise expressly stated, all 
references in this Contract to “day(s)” means calendar days.  

 
14. Cleanup. Contractor will keep the Project free from accumulation of debris, waste materials, 
or rubbish caused by its operations. On completion of the Work, Contractor will remove all debris, 
waste materials, rubbish, and surplus material caused by its operations from Owner’s property. 
Contractor will thoroughly clean the work area, leaving it in a neat and clean condition.  

 
15. Assignment. Neither Party may assign this Contract or its rights under this Contract, or 
delegate its duties under this Contract, without the other Party’s written consent, with the exception 
that Contractor may subcontract portions of the Work. Any attempted assignment or delegation 
without the other Party’s written consent is void.  
 
16. Marketing and Advertising Rights. Owner grants Contractor license to post marketing 
signs and banners on the building subject to the Work, and to make and use photographs and videos 
of the building for marketing and advertising purposes.  
 
17. Compliance With Applicable Law. Each Party will comply with all federal, state, and local 

laws applicable to the Work and the Project, and all regulations and administrative rules 
established pursuant to those laws. 

 
18. Notice. Any notice required or permitted under this Contract will be deemed given if it is in 

U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 1

34
 o

f 1
36



Page 8 of 9 – CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT   Initials: ____ (Owner) ____ (Contractor) 
 
 
 

writing, addressed to the other Party’s representative identified on page 1 of this Contract, and 
delivered to that person via U.S. Mail, certified or first-class postage prepaid, or by overnight delivery 
service, fees prepaid, with proof of delivery. For purposes of U.S. Mail, delivery will be presumed 
five (5) days after being properly deposited in the mail. Either Party may change the person or address 
for receipt of notices by providing written notice to the other Party.  
 
19. Integration. This Contract constitutes the entire agreement of the Parties. No other 
agreements, oral or written, pertaining to the Work exists between the Parties. This Contract can only 
be modified by an agreement in writing signed by authorized representatives of both Parties. 
 
20. Limitation of Liability. In consideration of the relative risks, costs, and financial exposure 
to Contractor, Owner agrees to limit the liability of Contractor for all liability, regardless of whether 
contractual, tort, negligence, strict liability, or otherwise, for all claims or causes of action arising 
from or relating to this Contract and Contractor’s performance of the Work, to a maximum aggregate 
of the Contract Price paid by Owner to Contractor under this Contract. In no event will Contractor 
be liable for any consequential, incidental, or indirect damages.  
 

20.1. Liability from Fire. Owner acknowledges that stucco is a fire retardant, and that the 
Work will require stucco removal, which may make the Project more susceptible to the risk of fire 
until the stucco is replaced. Owner understands this risk and further understands that Owner is 
responsible for removing or monitoring all other flammable materials under its control, or its tenants’ 
control, in those areas during performance of the Work.  

 
21. Governing Law. The laws of Oregon, without regard to conflict-of-laws principles, govern 
all matters arising under or relating to this Contract, including its construction, interpretation, and 
enforcement.   
 
 

Owner 
MARLENE COX, TRUSTEE PMC 

  LIVING TRUST 

Contractor 
OPTIMUM SEISMIC, INC. 
a California corporation 

 
By:  

Its: 

Date: 

 
By:    

Ali Vahdani, P.E. 
Its: President, CEO 
Date: 

 
  

U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 1

35
 o

f 1
36



      
 
 
 

EXHIBIT A 
PLANS 

U
rb

an
 R

en
ew

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
M

on
da

y,
 N

ov
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
Pa

ge
 1

36
 o

f 1
36


	000 URABOD Agenda
	200 2024.09.16 URABOD Minutes DRAFT
	300.1 Staff Report - 791 Main Update-Forum
	300.2 791 Main St Open House Boards with new Options 2024-10-28-reduced
	Slide 1: Project Context and Dallas’ Vision
	Slide 3: Project Context and Dallas’ Vision
	Slide 4
	Slide 5
	Slide 6
	Slide 8
	Slide 10: Potential Site Design Features
	Slide 11
	Slide 13
	Slide 15: Design Compatibility
	Slide 16

	300.3 791 Main Steet Community Survey Responses 2024-10 v3
	Default Section
	Slide 1
	Slide 2
	Slide 3
	Slide 4
	Slide 5
	Slide 6
	Slide 7
	Slide 8
	Slide 9
	Slide 10
	Slide 11
	Slide 12
	Slide 13
	Slide 14


	300.4 791 Main Street Market Analysis 2024-10 v3
	Introduction
	Slide 1
	Slide 2: Contents

	Executive Summary
	Slide 3: Executive Summary
	Slide 4
	Slide 5
	Slide 6
	Slide 7
	Slide 8: Methodology

	Hotel
	Slide 9: Hotel Market Analysis
	Slide 10: Strengths Of the Market and Site  For a Future Hotel Project 
	Slide 11
	Slide 12
	Slide 13
	Slide 14
	Slide 15
	Slide 16
	Slide 17
	Slide 18
	Slide 19
	Slide 20
	Slide 21
	Slide 22
	Slide 23
	Slide 24
	Slide 25
	Slide 26
	Slide 27
	Slide 28
	Slide 29
	Slide 30
	Slide 31
	Slide 32
	Slide 33

	Challenges - Hotel
	Slide 34: Challenges Of the Market and Site  For a Future Hotel Project 
	Slide 35
	Slide 36
	Slide 37
	Slide 38
	Slide 39
	Slide 40
	Slide 41
	Slide 42

	Housing
	Slide 43: Housing Market Analysis
	Slide 44: Strengths Of the Market and Site  For a Future Mixed-Use Housing Project 
	Slide 45
	Slide 46
	Slide 47
	Slide 48
	Slide 49
	Slide 50
	Slide 51
	Slide 52

	Housing - Challenges
	Slide 53: Challenges Of the Market and Site  For a Future Mixed-Use Housing Project 
	Slide 54
	Slide 55
	Slide 56
	Slide 57
	Slide 58
	Slide 59
	Slide 60
	Slide 61

	Conclusions and Recommendations
	Slide 62: Conclusions And Recommendations
	Slide 63
	Slide 64
	Slide 65
	Slide 66
	Slide 67
	Slide 68
	Slide 69
	Slide 70
	Slide 71

	Appendices
	Slide 72: Appendices
	Slide 73
	Slide 74


	300.5 791 Main Street Engineering Memo - PBS_20241025 - Without Appendices
	400 BIG Staff Report 2024-05
	11.4.2024 BIG Staff Report 2024-05.pdf
	BIG 24-05 Application Packet.pdf
	BIG 24-05 Survey Response
	BIG 24-05 Photos and Estimate


	500 BIG Staff Report 2024-06
	11.4.24 BIG Staff Report 2024-06 - PACKET.pdf
	BIG 24-06 Application Packet.pdf
	Big 24-06 Survey Response
	BIG 24-06 Estimate
	CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT



	11.4.2024 BIG Staff Report 2024-06.pdf




